
 
 
To: MEMBER OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 

Councillors Blackwell (Chair), C.White (Vice-Chair), B.Black, 
Botten, Chotai, C.Farr, Gray, Montgomery, Moore, Prew and 
Steeds 
 
Substitute Councillors: Allen, Cooper, S.Farr and Robinson 
 

for any enquiries, please contact: 
customerservices@tandridge.gov.uk 

01883 722000 

C.C. All Other Members of the Council 2 May 2023 
 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 
THURSDAY, 11TH MAY, 2023 AT 7.30 PM 
 
The agenda for this meeting of the Committee to be held in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, 
Station Road East, Oxted is set out below.  If a member of the Committee is unable to attend the 
meeting, please notify officers accordingly. 
 
Should members require clarification about any item of business, they are urged to contact officers 
before the meeting. In this respect, reports contain authors’ names and contact details. 
 
If a Member of the Council, not being a member of the Committee, proposes to attend the meeting, 
please let the officers know by no later than noon on the day of the meeting. 
 
Yours faithfully, 
 
 
David Ford 
Chief Executive 
 

 
AGENDA 

  
1. Apologies for absence (if any)   
  
2. Declarations of interest   
 

All Members present are required to declare, at this point in the meeting or as soon as 
possible thereafter: 
  

(i)            any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) and / or 
  

(ii)           other interests arising under the Code of Conduct 
  
in respect of any item(s) of business being considered at the meeting. Anyone with a DPI 
must, unless a dispensation has been granted, withdraw from the meeting during 
consideration of the relevant item of business.  If in doubt, advice should be sought from the 
Monitoring Officer or his staff prior to the meeting.             
  

3. Minutes from the meeting held on 18th April 2023  (Pages 3 - 4) 
  
4. To deal with questions submitted under Standing Order 30   
 
 
  

Public Document Pack

mailto:customerservices@tandridge.gov.uk


 

5. Applications for consideration by committee  (Pages 5 - 14) 
  

5.1 2022/1161 - Young Epilepsy, St Piers Lane, Lingfield, Surrey, RH7 6PW  (Pages 
15 - 94) 

  
6. Any urgent business   
 

To deal with any other item(s) which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be considered as a 
matter of urgency in accordance with Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 
 



1 
 

 

THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF TANDRIDGE 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes and report to Council of the meeting of the Committee held in the Council Chamber, 
Council Offices, Station Road East, Oxted on the 18 April 2023. 
 
PRESENT: Councillors Blackwell (Chair), C.White (Vice-Chair), B.Black, Botten, 

Chotai, C.Farr, Moore, Prew, Steeds and S.Farr (Substitute - in place of 
Montgomery) 

ALSO PRESENT: Councillors Allen, Swann and N.White 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillors Gray and Montgomery 

 
297. MINUTES FROM THE MEETING HELD ON 2 MARCH 2023  

 
The minutes of the meeting were confirmed and signed by the Chair. 
 

298. 2022/1399 - 23 OAST ROAD, HURST GREEN, OXTED, SURREY, 
RH8 9DU  
 
The Committee considered an application for the erection of a two storey rear extension, a new 
front porch, front and side facades window reconfigurations and the demolition of the existing 
garage and the erection of a residential annex. 
  
The Officer recommendation was to permit subject to conditions. 
  
Ms Emily Danaee, an objector, spoke against the application.  
  
Mrs Ruth Paley, the applicant, spoke in favour of the application. 
  

R E S O L V E D – that planning permission be granted, subject to conditions. 
 

299. 2023/164 - 103 PAYNESFIELD ROAD, TATSFIELD, WESTERHAM, 
SURREY, TN16 2BQ  
 
The Committee considered an application for the conversion of a double garage and the 
erection of a pitched roof along with the erection of a single-storey rear extension, loft extension 
with gable roof extensions to the front and rear elevations with side dormers with high-level 
windows. 
  
The Officer recommendation was to permit, subject to conditions. 
  
Councillor Jason Syrett of Tatsfield Parish Council spoke against the application. 
  
Councillor Allen requested that the following motion for refusal be considered by the 
Committee: 
  

1.    The proposal, by reason of its scale, bulk and form would result in a cramped form of 
development constituting overdevelopment of the site. This would be contrary to Policy 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



2 

 
 

CSP18 of the Tandridge Core Strategy 2008, Policy DP7 of the Tandridge Local Plan: 
Part 2 – Detailed Policies 2014 and the NPPF (2021). 

  
2.   The proposal would provide a shortfall in on-site parking which would not accord in full 

with the adopted Parking Standards SPD (2012) resulting in additional on-street parking 
which would cause congestion and harm to amenity of existing neighbouring residents 
and future residents of the proposed development. The proposal would be contrary to 
Policy DP7 of the Tandridge Local Plan Part 2: Detailed Policies 2014. 
  

Councillor Moore proposed the motion but it was not seconded.  Therefore, the motion was did 
not proceed to a vote. 
  

R E S O L V E D – that planning permission be granted, subject to conditions. 
 

300. 2017/212 - LAND TO THE REAR OF DORMANS STATION, 
STATION ROAD, DORMANSLAND  
 
The Committee considered a variation of a Section 106 Agreement relating to land to the rear 
of Dormans Station, Station Road, Dormansland to allow 9 affordable housing units to be 
provided as Discounted Market Housing. 
  
Mrs Liz Lockwood, an objector, spoke against the recommendation.   
  
During the debate it was confirmed that the car park at the site had 70 parking spaces, 59 of 
which would be for use by commuters and 11 allocated to residents. It was also noted that the 
correct company name for the site owner was Globus Industries Inc. PLC and not Globus 
Industries Ltd as stated in the Officer report. 
  
Councillor Moore indicated that she had been provided wording for a motion to defer the 
variation.  However, the motion was not proposed or seconded and therefore the motion did not 
proceed to a vote. 
  

R E S O L V E D – that the Section 106 Agreement be varied to allow 9 affordable 
housing units to be provided as Discounted Market Housing. 

 
301. RECENT APPEAL DECISIONS RECEIVED  

 
The Interim Chief Planning Officer informed the Committee that an appeal decision relating to 
land located to the West of Limpsfield Road, Warlingham had recently been published. The 
applicant, Cala Homes, had commenced an appeal on the basis of non-determination of their 
application for planning permission.  The Planning Inspector had found in favour of the 
applicant and granted planning permission for 100 houses. It was confirmed that no application 
for costs had been made by the applicant. 
  
The Committee was also informed that a fast track appeal would be taking place on 20 June 
2023 in respect of the planning application for a new Aldi Supermarket at 381 Croydon Road, 
Caterham (application reference 2021/1800). This application was refused by the Committee on 
28 July 2022.  The Council was currently preparing for the appeal. 

 
Rising 9.00 pm 
 

Page 4



 

 

 

 

REPORT TO THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 

ON 11 MAY 2023 
 
AGENDA ITEM 5 
 

APPLICATIONS FOR CONSIDERATION BY THE COMMITTEE 
 
To consider the application detailed in item 5.1. 
 
Notes: 
 
(i) All letters received commenting on applications adversely or otherwise will be available in the 

Council Chamber for inspection by Members prior to the meeting.  Summaries of the public 
responses to applications are included in the reports although Members should note that 
non-planning comments are not included. 

 
(ii) Arrangements for public participation in respect of the applications will be dealt with 

immediately prior to the commencement of the meeting. 
 

 
Contacts:  
 
Cliff Thurlow, Head of Development Management and Interim Chief Planning Officer 
01883 732906 
Email: cthurlow@tandridge.gov.uk 
 
Sean Scott, Principal Planning Officer 
01883 732833 
Email: sscott@tandridge.gov.uk 
 
Caroline Daniels, Legal Specialist 
01883 732757 
Email: cdaniels@tandridge.gov.uk 
  
Background papers: Surrey Waste Plan 2008; Surrey Minerals Plan Core Strategy 2011; The 

Tandridge Core Strategy Development Plan Document 2008; The Tandridge 
Local Plan: Part 2 – Detailed Policies 2014; Woldingham Neighbourhood 
Plan 2016; The Harestone Valley and Woldingham Design Guidance 
Supplementary Planning Documents 2011; Village Design Statement for 
Lingfield – Supplementary Planning Guidance; Woldingham Village Design 
Statement – Supplementary Planning Guidance; Conservation Area 
Appraisal of the Bletchingley Conservation Area Supplementary Planning 
Guidance; Limpsfield Neighbourhood Plan 2019 

 
Government Advice: National Planning Policy Framework  

 Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5

mailto:cthurlow@tandridge.gov.uk
mailto:sscott@tandridge.gov.uk
mailto:cdaniels@tandridge.gov.uk


 
 

 

 

  

PLANNING COMMITTEE – 11 MAY 2023 – RECOMMENDATIONS 

ITEM 
NO. 

APPLICATION 
NO. 

SITE ADDRESS APPLICATION DETAILS RECOMMENDATION 

 

5.1 2022/1161 
(Planning 

Permission) 
and 2022/1022 

(Listed 
Building 
Consent) 

Young Epilepsy, 
St Piers Lane, 
Lingfield,  
Surrey,  
RH7 6PW 

Demolition of buildings and 
redevelopment to provide a 
residential care community (Use 
Class C2) comprising 152 units of 
accommodation, with associated 
communal facilities, parking, 
landscaping, and associated 
infrastructure; and extension and 
refurbishment of existing buildings 
for Young Epilepsy with associated 
landscaping and parking. Works to 
the existing link between the 
farmhouse and the listed barn and 
the conversion of the vacant and 
redundant granary to a picnic barn, 
with storage space within its upper 
floor. The courtyard area to the 
south of the farmhouse, alongside 
the barn and granary would be 
landscaped to form a new courtyard 
space to complement the existing 
and proposed uses in the listed 
buildings.(Listed Building) (Planning 
website updated to display file 
descriptions) 

PERMIT (Planning 
Permission)  

and  

GRANT (Listed 
Building Consent) 

Page 6



 
 

 

SUMMARY OF RELEVANT POLICIES & NATIONAL ADVICE FOR  
PLANNING APPLICATIONS IN APPENDIX A. 

 
Core Strategy 
 
Policy CSP1 sets several strategic aims in terms of the location of development.  It 
seeks to promote sustainable patterns of travel, make the best use of land within the 
existing built-up areas. 
 
Policy CSP2 sets out the Council’s approach to housing supply. 
 
Policy CSP3 seeks to manage the delivery of housing when the Council exceeds its 
rolling 5-year supply by more than 20%.  When such an oversupply exists, the Council 
will refuse development of unidentified residential garden land sites of 5 units and 
above or site larger than 0.2ha where the number of dwellings is unknown.  Account 
must be taken of smaller sites forming parts of larger sites and infrastructure provision 
as well as significant social or community benefits. 
 
Policy CSP4 is an interim holding policy pending the adoption of a substitute policy in 
an Affordable Housing DPD.  It sets a threshold within built up areas of 15 units or 
more or sites in excess of 0.5ha and within rural areas of 10 units or more.  The policy 
requires that up to 34% of units would be affordable in these cases with the actual 
provision negotiated on a site by site basis.  There is a requirement that up to 75% of 
the affordable housing will be provided in the form of social rented or intermediate or 
a mix of both. 
 
Policy CSP5 refers to rural exception sites and states that exceptionally, land adjoining 
or closely related to the defined rural settlements which would otherwise be considered 
inappropriate for development may be developer in order to provide affordable housing 
subject to certain criteria.   
 
Policy CSP7 requires sites providing 5 units or more to contain and appropriate mix of 
dwelling sizes in accordance with identified needs. 
 
Policy CSP8 sets out the Council’s approach to the provision of Extra Care Housing, 
including its targets for such provision.  
 
Policy CSP9 sets out the criteria for assessing suitable Gypsy and Traveller sites to 
meet unexpected and proven need. 
 
Policy CSP11 sets out the Council’s approach to infrastructure and service provision. 
 
Policy CSP12 seeks to manage travel demand by requiring preference to walking, 
cycling and public transport; infrastructure improvements where required and use of 
adopted highway design standards and parking standards. 
 
Policy CSP13 seeks to retain existing cultural, community, recreational, sport and open 
space facilities and encourage new or improved facilities. 
 
Policy CSP14 seeks to encourage all new build or residential conversions meet Code 
level 3 as set out in the Code for Sustainable Homes and that commercial development 
with a floor area over 500sq m will be required to meet BREEAM “Very Good” standard.  
On site renewables are also required. 
 

Page 7



 
 

 

Policy CSP15 seeks to ensure that the design and layout of development is safe and 
secure, that new buildings are adaptable for the disabled and elderly, that information 
technology can be included, that all development is accessible to all groups and that 
grey water recycling and/or segregated surface and foul water disposal is used. 
 
Policy CSP16 sets out the Council’s position on aviation development in the District 
with specific reference to its position on development at Redhill Aerodrome.   
 
Policy CSP17 requires that biodiversity is taken into account. 
 
Policy CSP18 seeks to ensure that developments have a high standard of design 
respecting local character, setting and context.  Amenities of existing occupiers must 
be respected.  Wooded hillsides will be respected and green space within built up 
areas protected.  Development on the edge of the Green Belt must not harm the Green 
Belt. 
 
Policy CSP19 sets a range of densities for new development. 
 
Policy CSP20 sets out the Council’s principles for the conservation and enhancement 
of the AONBs and AGLVs. 
 
Policy CSP21 states that the character and distinctiveness of the District’s landscapes 
and countryside will be protected, and new development will be required to conserve 
ad enhance landscape character. 
 
Policy CSP22 sets out how the Council will seek to develop a sustainable economy. 
 
Policy CSP23 set out specific aims for the town centres of Caterham Valley and Oxted. 
 
Tandridge Local Plan: Part 2 – Detailed Policies – 2014  
 
Policy DP1 sets out the general presumption in favour of sustainable development. 
 
Policy DP2 sets out the policies for development in the town centres, including within 
the primary and secondary shopping frontages 
 
Policy DP3 sets out the policies for development in local centres, other centres and 
villages 
 
Policy DP4 sets out the circumstances under which proposals for the alternative use 
of commercial and industrial sites will be permitted. 
 
Policy DP5 sets out criteria for assessing whether proposals are acceptable in relation 
to highway safety and design. 
 
Policy DP6 sets out criteria for assessing proposals for telecommunications 
infrastructure.  
 
Policy DP7 is a general policy for all new development.  It outlines that development 
should be appropriate to the character of the area, provide sufficient parking, safeguard 
amenity and safeguard assets, resources and the environment, including trees.  
 
Policy DP8 sets out a number of criteria for assessing whether the redevelopment of 
residential garden land will be acceptable. 
 

Page 8



 
 

 

Policy DP9 sets out the circumstances in which the erection of gates, walls and other 
means of enclosure will be permitted. 
 
Policy DP10 confirms the general presumption against inappropriate development in 
the Green Belt and states that inappropriate development will only be permitted where 
very special circumstances exist which clearly outweigh the potential harm to the 
Green Belt by reason of inappropriateness and any other harm.  
 
Policy DP11 sets out the circumstances in which development in the Larger Rural 
Settlements will be permitted. 
 
Policy DP12 sets out the circumstances in which development in the Defined Villages 
in the Green Belt will be permitted.  
 
Policy DP13 sets out the exceptions to the Green Belt presumption against 
inappropriate development in the Green Belt and the circumstances in which new 
buildings and facilities, extensions and alterations, replacement of buildings, infill, 
partial or complete redevelopment and the re-use of buildings will be permitted.  
 
Policy DP14 sets out a number of criteria for assessing proposals for garages and 
other ancillary domestic buildings in the Green Belt. 
 
Policy DP15 sets out criteria for assessing proposals for agricultural workers’ dwellings 
in the Green Belt. 
 
Policy DP16 states that the removal of agricultural occupancy conditions will be 
permitted where the Council is satisfied that there is no longer a need for such 
accommodation in the locality. 
 
Policy DP17 sets out criteria for assessing proposals for equestrian facilities.  
 
Policy DP18 sets out the circumstances in which development involving the loss of 
premises or land used as a community facility will be permitted. 
 
Policy DP19 deals with biodiversity, geological conservation and green infrastructure. 
 
Policy DP20 sets out the general presumption in favour of development proposals 
which protect, preserve or enhance the interest and significance of heritage assets and 
the historic environment. 
 
Policy DP21 deals with sustainable water management, and sets out criteria for 
assessing development in relation to water quality, ecology and hydromorphology, and 
flood risk. 
 
Policy DP22 sets out criteria for assessing and mitigating against contamination, 
hazards and pollution including noise.  
 
Woldingham Neighbourhood Plan 2016  
 
Policy L1 is a general design policy for new development  
 
Policy L2 sets out criteria for assessing new development proposals in relation to the 
Woldingham Character Areas  
 
Policy L3 relates to landscape character 

Page 9



 
 

 

 
Policy L4 relates to proposals for new community facilities 
 
Policy L5 relates to development proposals for The Crescent and its regeneration 
 
Policy L6 seeks to support improvements to the accessibility of Woldingham Station 
 
Policy L7 relates to the development of broadband and mobile communications 
infrastructure 
 
Policy L8 seeks to safeguard a number of Local Green Spaces as designated by the 
Plan  
 
Policy C1 seeks to promote residents’ safety 
 
Policy C2 seeks to support proposals and projects which improve local transport 
services 
 
Policy C3 supports the improvement of pedestrian and cycle routes 
 
Policy C4 supports proposals which promote networking and residents’ involvement 
on local societies and organisations 
 
Limpsfield Neighbourhood Plan 2019 
 
Policy LN1 sets out a spatial strategy for the Parish. 
 
Policy LN2 requires that all new development provides an appropriate mix of housing 
types and size, including smaller units (3 bedrooms or fewer) for sites over a certain 
size. 
 
Policy LN3 seeks a high quality of design, reflecting the distinctive character of 
particular areas of the Parish. 
 
Policy LN4 relates to new development in the Limpsfield Conservation Area. 
 
Policy LN5 relates to landscape character. 
 
Policy LN6 identifies a number of Local Green Spaces, and seeks to protect their use. 
 
Policy LN8 seeks to promote biodiversity. 
 
Policy LN9 relates to business and employment, including in relation to Oxted town 
centre. 
 
Policy LN10 relates to the rural economy. 
 
Policy LN11 seeks to protect community services in Oxted town centre.  
 
Policy LN12 seeks to protect community services in Limpsfield Village and other parts 
of the Parish.  
 
Policy LN13 supports sustainable forms of transport.  
 
Policy LN14 supports the provision of super-fast broadband.  

Page 10



 
 

 

Caterham, Chaldon and Whyteleafe Neighbourhood Plan 2021 
 
Policy CCW1 – gives support to proposals identified for their Housing Site Availability 
during the period 2015-2026 
 
Policy CCW2 – supports proposals for sub-division of larger residential properties into 
one, two, three-bedroom dwellings 
 
Policy CCW3 – supports proposals for housing which optimise housing delivery in 
accordance with guidance contained in the Urban Capacity Study and outlines density 
range of 30-55 dwellings per hectare for land not covered in the Urban Capacity 
Report. 
 
Policy CCW4 – sets out that development is expected to preserve and enhance the 
character of the area in which it is located. 
 
Policy CCW5 – sets out that development proposals which integrate well with their 
surroundings, meet the needs of residents and minimise impact on the local 
environment will be supported where they demonstrate high quality of design and 
accord with the criteria of this policy. 
 
Policy CCW6 – support proposals which incorporate measures to deliver 
environmentally sustainable design to reduce energy consumption and mitigate effects 
of climate change in line with building design measures contained in the policy. 
 
Policy CCW7 – supports proposals which provide incubator/start-up business space 
and/or establishes enterprise/business park developments.  
 
Policy CCW8 – resists the loss of local and neighbourhood convenience shops unless 
justification is present on viability grounds. Proposals to improve the quality and 
appearance of sop fronts and signage will be supported which have regards to CCW6.  
 
Policy CCW9 – proposals for recreational and tourism development including a Visitor 
Centre will be supported where the criteria of this policy are met. Proposals for the 
improvement of signage for local facilities will be supported provided they integrate 
with their surroundings. 
 
Policy CCW10 – supports development proposals which do not have a significantly 
detrimental impact on locally significant views as listed/mapped in the Neighbourhood 
Plan (Figures 7.1, 7.2-7.5, with detailed descriptions in Appendix A). 
 
Policy CCW11 – sets out that there are 22 areas designated as Local Green Spaces 
on the policies map for the Neighbourhood Plan. Proposals which demonstrably 
accord with development appropriate in the Green Belt will be supported. 
 
Policy CCW12 – proposals for provision of allotments and/or community growing 
spaces will be supported where accessible and within/adjacent to defined settlement 
areas. The loss of such space will not be supported unless alternative and equivalent 
provision is provided. 
 
Policy CCW14 – encourages proposals for new/improved community facilities where 
criteria in the policy are met. The loss of such facilities will only be supported if 
alternative and equivalent facilities are provided. 
 

Page 11



 
 

 

Policy CCW15 – proposals for the expansion of existing public houses to develop 
appropriate community-based activities will be supported subject to compliance with 
other relevant policies and provide the design is in keeping with local 
character/distinctiveness. Proposals for the change of use of public houses will only 
be supported if the use is demonstrably unviable. 
 
Policy CCW16 – supports proposals for provision of both traditional consecrated and 
green/woodland burial sites provided the criteria of this policy are met.  
 
Policy CCW17 – supports proposals which facilitate or enhance the delivery of health 
services on a pre-set list of sites (contained within the policy), except for those within 
the Green Belt. Proposals for relocation/expansion of health services will be supported 
where they satisfy the criteria of this policy.  
 
Policy CCW18 – except on Green Belt land, proposals which facilitate and enhance 
existing schools and associated playing fields will be supported subject to compliance 
with the criteria in this policy (sub-paragraph A). Proposals for new schools will be 
supported where they satisfy the criteria of this policy (sub-paragraph B). 
 
Policy CCW19 – supports new residential, commercial and community development 
proposals being served by superfast broadband (fibre-optic). Where this is not 
possible, practical or viable, the development should incorporate ducting for potential 
future installation.  
 
Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs) and Supplementary Planning 
Guidance (SPGs) 
 
SPG (Lingfield Village Design Statement), adopted in January 2002, seeks to ensure 
that the village retains its individuality and character through future development both 
large and small.  It provides general guidelines for new development and requires 
amongst other things that the design of new buildings should be sympathetic to the 
style of buildings in the locality both in size and materials.  
 
SPG (Woldingham Village Design Statement) adopted in September 2005 provides 
guidance for development within Woldingham.  Residential extensions should respect 
the size and proportions of the original house and plot.  Boundary treatments should 
maintain the rural street scene, imposing entrances are out of keeping, and front 
boundaries should be screened with plantings or have low open wooded fences. 
 
SPD (Woldingham Design Guidance) adopted March 2011 and seeks to; promote 
good design, protect and enhance the high quality character of the area, and to apply 
design principles on a sub-area basis to maintain and reinforce character. 
 
SPD (Harestone Valley Design Guidance) adopted March 2011 and seeks to; promote 
good design, protect and enhance the high quality character of the area, and to apply 
design principles on a sub-area basis to maintain and reinforce character. 
 
SPD (Tandridge Parking Standards) adopted September 2012 sets out standards for 
residential and non-residential vehicular parking and standards for bicycle parking.  
 
SPD (Tandridge Trees and Soft Landscaping) adopted November 2017 sets out the 
Council’s approach to the integration of new and existing trees and soft landscaping 
into new development, and seeks to ensure that trees are adequately considered 
throughout the development process.   
 

Page 12



 
 

 

National Advice 

 
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) constitutes guidance for local 
planning authorities and decision-takers both in drawing up plans and as 
a material consideration in determining applications. It sets out the Government’s 
planning policies for England and how these are expected to be applied. It states that 
there are three dimensions to sustainable development: economic, social and 
environmental, and confirms the presumption in favour of sustainable forms of 
development which it states should be seen as a golden thread running through both 
plan-making and decision-taking. 
 
The Government has also published national Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) 
which is available online and covers a number of policy areas and topics.  
 
 

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

ITEM 5.1 
 
Application for Planning Permission:  TA/2022/1161 
 
Application for Listed Building Consent:  TA/2022/1022 
 
Location:  Young Epilepsy, St Piers Lane, Lingfield, Surrey, RH7 6PW 
 
Proposal:  Demolition of buildings and redevelopment to provide a residential care 

community (Use Class C2) comprising 152 units of accommodation, with 
associated communal facilities, parking, landscaping, and associated 
infrastructure; and extension and refurbishment of existing buildings for 
Young Epilepsy with associated landscaping and parking. Works to the 
existing link between the farmhouse and the listed barn and the 
conversion of the vacant and redundant granary to a picnic barn, with 
storage space within its upper floor. The courtyard area to the south of 
the farmhouse, alongside the barn and granary would be landscaped to 
form a new courtyard space to complement the existing and proposed 
uses in the listed buildings. (Listed Building) (Planning website updated 
to display file descriptions) 

 
Ward:  Dormansland and Felcourt 
 
Constraints: Area of Special Advertising Consent, Ancient Woodland Within 500m, 

Biodiversity Opportunity Areas, Flood Zone 2, Gatwick Bird Strike Zone, 
Gatwick Safeguarding 90m, Green Belt, Listed Buildings- Lingfield Hospital 
School – Grade II Listed Buildings – barn 5 yards east of Lingfield Hospital 
School II, Listed Buildings – Granary 30 yards southwest of Lingfield Hospital 
School II, Potential sites of nature conservation interest, Local Road D – St 
Piers Lane, Local Road B Moor Lane, Environment Agency risk of flooding from 
surface water 1 in 100,  Environment Agency risk of flooding from surface water 
1 in 1000, Environment Agency risk of flooding from surface water 1 in 30, 
Rights of Way footpath 382, Rights of Way footpath 381, Rights of Way footpath 
383, Rights of Way footpath 379, Rights of Way footpath 384, Spatial protection 
areas. 

 
APPLICTION TA/2022/1161 FOR PLANNING PERMSSION FOR NEW BUILT 
DEVELOPMENT, RECOMMENDATION:  PERMIT 
 
APPLICATION TA/2022/1022 FOR LISTED BUILDING CONSENT, 
RECOMMENDATION:  GRANT 
 

1. This application is reported to Committee following Member requests for a ‘call in’ 
for a recommendation to either Grant or Refuse the application. The Listed Building 
application was not part of the call-ins. 

 

Planning Application Summary 

 

2. The proposal would result in inappropriate development within and thereby harm to 
the Green Belt. There are, however, Very Special Circumstances (VSC’S) to be 
considered including, among other things, financial contributions towards Young 
Epilepsy by reducing costs associated with maintaining an estate of largely 
redundant buildings and providing enabling funding to ensure the continued work of 
this special charity and the significant local employment it generates. Another VSC 

Page 15

Agenda Item 5.1



 

2 
 

is considered to be benefits from conservation of heritage assets (that is listed 
buildings) on the site enabling their optimum viable use and representing a public 
benefit. A further VSC is considered to be the creation of a C2 retirement and extra 
care community in new housing and associated facilities to be built on the site. 
These VSC’s are considered to outweigh the Green Belt and other identified harm.  
Although the site is located in an unsustainable location, a timetabled bus service, 
which would be provided to residents in perpetuity in the form of a 15-seater minibus 
along with the provision of a car club, would be sufficient to overcome this issue. 
The scale, massing and layout of the development proposal are considered to be 
acceptable, as the redundant buildings currently in place will be demolished 
improving the openness of the Green Belt particularly to the west of the site.   
 

3. The VSC’s set out within this report are considered sufficient to override the Green 
Belt and other harm identified by the development proposal and, for this reason, 
subject to the conditions and Heads of Terms set out in appendices at the end of 
the report, the application is considered acceptable. 
 

4. There are a number of material considerations both for and against the development 
arising from national and development plan policy considerations. These are not 
VSC’s. The material considerations also need to be weighed in the planning 
balance. Overall, these material considerations give weight to the conclusion that 
planning permission should be granted  

 

Listed Building Consent Application Summary 

 

5. Although it is unfortunate from a heritage perspective that 1 and 2 Farm Cottages 
(non-designated heritage assets) will not be retained, their removal in order to 
reduce the overall building mass on the site in the interests of complying with Green 
Belt policies is recognised. However, conditions relating to the taking of 
photographic and written records of the buildings of historic interest should be 
secured. Details of repairs to the timber framing on the Granary should be submitted 
by condition. In terms of design, the depth of tile hanging on the on the new buildings 
should be amended to provide a more appropriate aesthetic in this sensitive 
location. The design of the lighting bollards should also be re-considered.  
 

6. Overall, the benefits to the historic built environment would include the following: 
 

• Repairs to the Granary,  

• Loss of hard standing surrounding the listed buildings  

• Loss of the modern building used as a workshop 

• Re-design of the car park to site it further away from the listed buildings 

• Provision of a comprehensive landscaping scheme that would substantially 
improve the setting to the listed buildings 

 

7. Taking into consideration the potential impact of the development proposal on the 
setting of the listed buildings, officers consider that these improvements would 
outweigh the less than substantial harm identified as part of this application. For 
these reasons, officers consider that the application would be acceptable with the 
incorporation of the conditions set out, in addition to a Grampian condition to ensure 
any public benefits are realised before any Green Belt and other harm occurs.  

 

 

 

 

Page 16



 

3 
 

 

Site Description 

 

8. The site measures approximately 42.5 hectares forming part of the St Piers Estate 
which is situated 0.7 km to the east of Lingfield (a larger rural settlement in the Green 
Belt) and 0.6 km north of Dormansland (a defined village in the Green Belt).  

 

9. Vehicular access is via St Piers Lane, which runs northeast-west, with a dogleg in 
the road centrally in the site. There are several public rights of way around the site 
and these can be seen on the site plan below. 

 
Figure 1. Aerial view of the site (outlined in red). Public rights of way highlighted in yellow 

 

10. The site is currently in use as a school and training facility and falls within the C2 
Use Class. The facility is run by Young Epilepsy, a charity which provides education 
and healthcare for children and young people with epilepsy, autism and other 
neurological conditions. The site contains 83 buildings of which only 43 are currently 
in use.  The derelict buildings have been described as being outdated and unfit for 
purpose, therefore redundant. 
 

11. There are three Grade Il listed buildings (the Farmhouse, Barn and Granary).  The 
formal listing of the farmhouse includes the following description: 

 

“House, now part office. C16. Timber framed with red and blue brick cladding 
below across front, tile hung above; exposed frame to right end and on return 
fronts and rear with brick and rendered infilling. Plain tiled roof hipped with 
gablet to right. Ridge stack to right of centre. T shape plan with gable front 
cross wing to right end. 2 storeys, 2 three-light gables eaves dormers across 
first floor left of centre and left; small 2-light window between. Further 3-light 
window in first floor of gabled wing to right. Glazed door to left of centre and 
half glazed leaded door in gabled brick porch to right of centre. Catslide 
extension to left with one casement window. Wing at right angles to rear 
centre. situated centrally within the site. highlights the importance of the 16th 
Century farmhouse, with the later built barn and Granary added for group 
value. 

 

12. The Barn has the following listing: 

 

Barn, now dining room. C18 altered in C19 with C20 extensions attached to 
left. Timber framed on coursed stone plinth weatherboard cladding. 
Extension to left roughcast brick with tile hung gable. Plain tiled roofs steeply 
pitched, hipped to right with end gablet. Rectangular with rectangular parallel 
extension to front left. Single storey wing at right angles to rear with tall end 
stack. 4 framed bays with large square bay mullion and transom window to 
right under projecting hipped roof; 18 diamond pane lights. Similar window 

Page 17



 

4 
 

to centre of right-hand return front. Sash window in right hand side of 
extension. Door to left of extension in deep recess porch passage. 

Interior:- Timber frame of thin scantling, braced posts and Queen strut roof. 

Included for group value only. 

 

13. The Granary has the following listing: 

 

Granary. Late C18. Red brown and blue brick below on coursed stone plinth. 
Timber framed clad in weatherboarding above. Hipped plain tiled roof square 
with scroll bracket gutters. Two storeys. Projecting double board doors to 
ground floor right. Metal garage door to ground floor left. External wood 
stairs to centre with board door at centre of first floor. 

Included for group value only. 

 

14. The High Weald Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) lies approximately 0.6 
km to the southeast, Lingfield Cernes Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) lies 
approximately 1.2 km to the northwest and Lingfield Wildlife Area Local Nature 
Reserve (LNR) and Centenary Fields LNR lie approximately 1.3 km to the 
northwest. Approximately 2 km to the northwest lie two Sites of Nature Conservation 
Importance (SNCI), Tom's Field (SNCI) and Orchid Meadow (SNCI). In addition to 
this, the site is a Biodiversity Opportunity Area as well as an Area of Special Advert 
Control (ASAC). The site is situated within the Green Belt (GB) and in Flood Zone 1 
(lowest risk of fluvial flooding). 
 

15. Varying densities of woodland surround the site, the most significant being 
Gratwick’s Wood (designated ancient woodland) to the north. The density of trees 
peters out to the northwest and varies in thickness to the west. There is some 
coverage to the south and Carewell Woods (designated ancient woodland) is sited 
to the southeast. The site is more open to the east. It is noted that St Piers Lane 
runs through the site centrally, and the views through the site from this lane are 
relatively open. The site levels decline from the north to the south of the site. 
 

16. Lingfield Train Station is approximately 1 kilometre to the west of the site.  

 

The Proposal 

 

17. The proposal would comprise two elements, one being the C2 retirement/ Extra 
Care component for the Audley Group and the second being the Young Epilepsy 
component, used for the purposes of the organisation: 
 

18.  For Audley Group element the proposed development compises: 

 

• The demolition of buildings and redevelopment to provide a residential care 
community (Use Class C2) comprising 152 units of accommodation, with 
associated communal facilities, parking, landscaping and associated 
infrastructure.  

• The change of use of the administration building to the northwest of the Grade 
II listed farmhouse for use as a shop to sell basic foods and toiletries with 
ancillary storage/office and WCs.  

 

19. The proposed mix of C2 housing for the Audley element is as follows (note that all 
units are market housing): 

 

Page 18



 

5 
 

• Block A:   
1 x three storey building containing 3 x 1 and 42 x 2 bed units (45 units in 
total). 

 

• Block B:  
1 x three storey building containing 18 x 2 bed units. 
 

• Block C1:  
Pair of semi-detached buildings containing 2 x 2 bed units.    
 

• Block C2:  
Pair of semi-detached buildings containing 2 x 2 bed units. 
 

• Block C3: 
Pair of semi-detached buildings containing 2 x 2 bed units. 
 

• Block C4  
Terraced two storey building containing 3 x 2 bed units. 
 

• Block C5 
Terraced two storey building containing 3 x 2 bed units. 
 

• Block C6 
Terraced two storey building containing 3 x 2 bed units.    
 

• Block C7  
Pair of semi-detached buildings containing 2 x 2 bed units. 
 

• Block D  
1 x 3 storey building containing 18 x 2 bed units. 
 

• Block E  
1 x 3 storey building containing 18 x 2 bed units. 
 

• Block F  

1 x 3 storey building containing 18 x 2 bed units. 

 

• Block M 1 x three storey building containing the following: 
 
o Ground floor - 2 x two bed flats, fitness studio, 2 x treatment rooms, 

swimming room, sauna, steam room, changing rooms, 3 x office, staff 
room, plant, laundry, WCs, kitchen, chef’s office, bar bistro, restaurant, 
private dining room. 

 
o First floor - 8 x two bed flats, 1 x guest room, hobbies studio. 

 
o Second floor - 8 x two bed flats, 1 x guest room. 
 

• Covered plant enclosure. 
 

• Provision of new wings to the college building; and re-purposing existing 
buildings. 
 

Page 19



 

6 
 

• Provision of a small ancillary shop to serve the campus. 

 

• Improvements to the area around the listed buildings (referred to as 'Heritage 
Square') to comprise the removal of a car parking area and modern building 
of no architectural merit and the incorporation of a hard and soft landscaped 
area. 

 

20. For the Young Epilepsy element the proposed development comprises: 
 

• The extension and refurbishment of existing buildings for Young Epilepsy 
including two single storey extensions to the further education college (to the 
east of the Listed Buildings) with monopitch roofs and associated landscaping 
and parking. The refurbishment of the school and college (Use Class C2) will 
allow the facilities to be brought into line with current standards (Department 
of Education Condition Grade B). This will ensure an improved educational 
environment with better facilities for both pupils and staff. The extensions 
would comprise: 
 

• Multi skills teaching space, dining area, workshop, 2 x stores, 3 x classrooms, 
2 x quiet rooms, time out room, staff room, WCs. Further works to benefit the 
school are listed below. 

 

• Replacement residential staff quarters located in Furzewood (northwest of the 
college extensions) and Paton (south of the games pitch).  
 

• Replacement occupational Therapy located in the building to the north of the 
retail area. 
 

• Replacement play therapy located in the main school building. 
 

• Replacement staff offices located to the north of the Neville Centre and within 
the Grade II Listed farmhouse building. Works to the existing link between the 
Grade II Listed Farmhouse and Barn to provide a lobby with seating area, 
plant room and WCs. (This element requires Listed Building Consent). 
 

• Change of use of boathouse to a gym to the southwest of the Granary.  
 

• Conversion of the vacant and redundant Grade II Listed Granary to a picnic 
barn (covered seating area where students can go and eat their lunches 
during break times) with storage space within its upper floor. (This element 
requires Listed Building Consent). 
 

• Landscaping of the courtyard area to the south of the farmhouse, alongside 
the barn and granary to form a new courtyard space to complement the 
existing and proposed uses in the listed buildings. (This element is also 
considered under the subject Listed Building Consent). 

 

21. Amendments have been made during the course of the application and are 
summarised below: 
 

• The three-storey element of the scheme has been reduced by 2 metres  

• The minimum care provision for occupants has been increased to 2 hours 
(from 1.5 hours) 

Page 20



 

7 
 

• An off-site contribution for Affordable Housing of £500,000 has been 
negotiated 

• Contributions for monitoring a site Travel Plan for £12,300 has been 
negotiated 

• Contributions to the NHS to mitigate impacts on local health services of 
£195,600 has been negotiated 

• Bus service using a 15-seat bus for the use of future care residents in 
perpetuity has been negotiated 

• Car club for an electric vehicle for future residents has been negotiate. 

 

Relevant History 

 

22. There is a lengthy history of planning applications at the application site. The 
applications detailed below are deemed to be relevant to this specific proposal.  
Applications 2013/61, 2012/1398, 2009/231, 2007/1636, 2007/622, 2003/1495, 
2000/1451, 96/454, 95/573, 95/127, 94/189, 91/1116, 88/1070, 81/287, 76/1050, 
75/528, GOR/125/73, GOR/415/73, GOR/408/70, GOR/259/69, GOR/198/69, 
GOR/7000, GPR/5053, GOR/4731, GOR/2137, GOR/774, GOR/774A were also all 
submitted with respect to this site but due to their age, the nature of the 
developments that were proposed or the limited relevance to this proposal, and in 
the interests of conciseness, it is not considered relevant or necessary to provide 
full details of those applications at this time.  The planning history that is considered 
to be of relevance to this application includes the following: 

 

2021/1748/EIA - EIA Screening Opinion - Not EIA development - 17/11/2021. 

 

2020/2250 - Granted - 20/05/2021 

Removal of existing WCs, modern timber column and relocation of existing kitchen 
space. Works to existing structural timber column in IT Office and general re-
decoration throughout at ground floor level. Removal of existing boiler cisterns and 
sanitary ware, levelling of existing floor to provide level office space to proposed 
meeting rooms and confidential space at first floor level. Installation of new 
lightweight partitions to form new collaboration spaces and relocation of existing 
door opening to proposed meeting room at first floor level. Installation of new 
lightweight partitions to form new collaboration spaces, removal of door into lobby 
area of collaboration space and general re-decoration throughout at first floor level. 
Minor repair works to external brickwork at various locations including re-mortar of 
localised areas. (Listed Building Consent). 

 

2020/1074 - Certificate of Lawfulness (existing use or development) - Granted 
09/09/2020 

The existing and proposed use ongoing is for the provision of residential care home 
for children with epilepsy. (Certificate of Lawfulness for Existing Use or 
Development).  

 

2015/1116 - Approved - 10/09/2015 

Variation of conditions 2, 3 and 7 of planning application TA/2012/1398 to allow for 
the renewable energy source to be changed to photovoltaic cells. 

 

2014/896 - Approved - 07/07/2014 

Demolition of 12 campus buildings. Erection of school building with ancillary drop 
off area, associated landscaping and emergency services access – variation of 
condition nos. 2, 3 and 8 of planning application ta/2012/1398 dated 11 February 

Page 21



 

8 
 

2013 to allow alterations to finished floor and roof height levels, size of green roof 
area, planting specification, retaining wall structures and external landscaping and 
perimeter fencing and external materials. 

 

2004/425 – Refused – 10/06/2004 

Demolition of 90 existing buildings and erection of educational, social and 
healthcare accommodation and residential development (total 135 units) (outline). 

 

Appeal reference APP/M3645/A/04/1156021. Appeal dismissed due to impact on 
the Green Belt and lack of very special circumstances.  The applications were 
called-in by the Secretary of State who agreed with the Inspector's decision. Both 
applications presented an 'enabling development' case with market housing 
proffered to ensure the continued viability of YE. 

 

2003/1267 – Refused - 18/11/2003 

 

Demolition of 90 existing buildings & erection of educational, social, healthcare 
accommodation & residential development (total 230 dwellings), with the 
realignment of St. Piers Lane (outline). 

 

Appeal reference APP/M3645/A/04/1150595. Appeal dismissed due to impact on 
the Green Belt and lack of very special circumstances.  The applications were 
called-in by the Secretary of State who agreed with the Inspector's decision. Both 
applications presented an 'enabling development' case with market housing 
proffered to ensure the continued viability of YE. 

 

Development Plan and National Policy 

 

Procedural note 

 

23. The Tandridge District Core Strategy and Detailed Local Plan Policies predate the 
NPPF as published in 2021. However, paragraph 219 of the NPPF (Annex 1) sets 
out that existing policies should not be considered out-of-date simply because they 
were adopted prior to the publication of the Framework document. Instead, due 
weight should be given to them in accordance with the degree of consistency with 
the current Framework.  
 

24. The NPPF imposes a presumption in favour of sustainable development (paragraph 
11). For decision making, this means that where there are no relevant development 
plan policies, or the policies which are most important for determining the application 
are out-of-date, permission should be granted unless: 

 

i. the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of 
particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development 
proposed; or 

 

ii. any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably 
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in this Framework 
taken as a whole. 

   

25.  In the absence of a 5-year housing land supply, it can be argued that Tandridge’s 
development plan policies are, in part, out of date. 

 

Page 22



 

9 
 

26. However, with regard to paragraph 11 (d) (i), footnote 7 explains that areas or assets 
of particular importance include land within the Green Belt and designated heritage 
assets. It is therefore necessary to assess whether the proposal would be in conflict 
with Green Belt policy and policies designed to protect heritage assets before 
deciding whether the presumption in favour applies in this case. The final 
assessment on this will be undertaken at the end of this report. 

 

Tandridge District Core Strategy 2008 

 

27. Those policies relevant to determination of this application are: 

 

CSP 1  Location of development 

CSP 2  Housing provision 

CSP 4  Affordable housing 

CSP 7  Housing balance 

CSP 8  Extra care housing 

CSP 11 Infrastructure and services 

CSP 12 Managing travel demand 

CSP 13 Community, sport and recreation facilities and services 

CSP 14 Sustainable construction 

CSP 15 Environmental quality 

CSP 17 Biodiversity 

CSP 18 Character and design 

CSP 19 Density 

CSP 21 Landscape and countryside 

CSP 22 The economy 

 

28. Tandridge Local Plan Part 2 – Detailed Policies 2014 

 

29. Those policies relevant to determination of this application are 

 

DP1  Sustainable development 

DP4  Alternative use of commercial and industrial sites 

DP5  Highway safety and design 

DP7  General policy for new development 

DP9  Gates, fences, walls and other means of enclosure 

DP10  Green Belt 

DP13  Buildings in the Green Belt 

DP18  Community, sports and recreational facilities 

DP19  Biodiversity, geological conservation and green infrastructure 

DP20  Heritage assets 

DP21  Sustainable water management 

DP22  Minimising contamination, hazards and pollution 

 

30. Other policies or documents relevant to determination of this application are: 

 

Emerging Tandridge Local Plan 2033 

Interim Policy Statement for Housing Delivery (IPSHD) September 2022 

  

 

Page 23



 

10 
 

31. Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs), Supplementary Planning Guidance 
(SPGs) and non-statutory guidance: 

 

Surrey Design Guide (2002) 

Open Space Strategy 2021-2025 

 

32. National Planning Policy and Guidance 

 

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2021) 

Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) 

National Design Guide (2019) 

 

Statutory Consultees (23): 

 

33. Dormansland Parish Council,  

 

Dormansland Parish Council broadly supports this application, however there is   
concern that there appears to be no plans to address the absence of a formal 
walking route between the site and Lingfield (para 7.4 Planning Statement). The 
creation of a relatively short stretch of footpath along St Piers Lane would help 
reduce car use by encouraging staff and residents to walk into Lingfield. 

 

34. Surrey County Council Education 

 

No comments received 

 

35. SCC Highways 

 

The development proposal lies outside the settlement area of Lingfield 
approximately 2 km to the east of its centre which is beyond a reasonable walking 
distance. Furthermore, the development is situated along St Piers Lane, which is a 
narrow rural lane with no pavements for the majority of its length and limited street 
lighting. It has a 40 MPH speed limit although this is reduced to 20 MPH through the 
Young Epilepsy campus. Walking, cycling and public transport are not currently 
considered to be safe or practical means of travel to and from the site, so the site is 
considered to be in an unsustainable location for a residential development in terms 
of transport and accessibility.  

 

However, notwithstanding this advice, the CHA acknowledges that there are three 
dimensions to sustainable development – economic, social and environmental – 
hence the sustainability of the site should not be assessed purely in terms of 
transport mode and distance. It also acknowledges that planning policy does permit 
the conversion and re-use of buildings in the Green Belt although some 
developments would not meet the requirements of locational and transport policies. 
For this reason, the LPA are required to consider the CHA’s sustainable transport 
advice against the other policies in the NPPF and the Core Strategy, particularly 
those relating to rural areas, in order to weigh up whether the development proposal 
would be sustainable in the wider sense. Typically, the CHA would endorse such 
development proposals being constructed in areas with good sustainable transport 
modes. However, as the assessment of this application requires the social and 
economic issues being taken into account in accordance with the NPPF, the CHA 
have chosen to raise their concerns and leave the final assessment to the LPA.  

 

Page 24



 

11 
 

 

36. Environment Agency 

 

No comments received 

 

37. Natural England 

 

No comments received 

 

38. Forestry Commission, (Ancient Woodland) 

 

No comments received 

 

39. SCC Adult Social Care  

 

The planning submission assesses demand through the below Housing LIN 
calculations. 

 

It assumes that enhanced sheltered housing should be included in with extra care 
housing to form a total of 40 per 1,000 of the 75+ population (presented as 4% in 
the TA/2022/548 Lingfield House retirement scheme needs assessment). This is, of 
course, inappropriate as enhanced sheltered housing can be questioned on its 
validity for C2 and it also cannot be assumed that the model will deliver a 24/7 on-
site care presence. 

 

An appropriate measure of extra care housing for sale would therefore be to use 30 
per 1,000 of the relevant 75+ population only. Please note that, while SCC’s 
currently published commissioning statement (Commissioning Statement - 
Accommodation with care, residential & nursing care for older people) Tandridge 
District Council - April 2019 onwards (surreycc.gov.uk) assumes a lower figure, the 
methodology will be revised to reflect the above’s assumption of 30 per 1,000 metric 
for market rent and market sale extra care housing (however labelled, e.g. assisted 
living, integrated retirement community etc) when we publish our new 
commissioning statements. 

 

Based on the latest population projections available by www.poppi.org.uk (ONS 
subnational projections published 24 March 2020), the demand for the provision 
presented by both 2022/548 and 2022/1161 can be calculated as follows for the 
Tandridge District Council area, using 30 per 1,000 of the 75+ population: 

 

2022 – 294 units 

2030 – 339 units 

2035 – 366 units 

 

As a result, it could be argued that this setting could meet local gaps in demand for 
private extra care housing. However, should the application be successful and lead 
to development, Tandridge District Council would need to consider carefully whether 
additional sites providing similar capacities would be appropriate to meet longer 
term demands for private extra care housing. 

 

 

 

Page 25



 

12 
 

 

40. NHS Surrey 

 

In terms of impact on the nearest GP surgery, the following points are made in 
answer to questions raised by officers: 

 

1. Will Lingfield Surgery have the capacity to take responsibility for another 
care home of this size? Do they have the option to refuse to take it on? 
 

From a capacity of workforce and contractual position – Currently Lingfield 
have an open list so if the home gets the go ahead the Practice would have 
no option (in todays’ position) but to accept the patients. This would be for 
the delivery of standard GP services to patients. However, there is a real risk 
that the additional clinical load created by the development of the facility, as 
on average older residents have a greater call on our GP services and 
together with the current number of nursing, residential, extra care homes in 
the area could result in the Practice needing to close their list to new Patients, 
if the surgery were not able to recruit a sustainable workforce. A closed list 
would affect the whole population of Lingfield and not just these patients. 

 

2. If there is insufficient capacity for Lingfield Surgery to provide this care, 
would there be any other options for nearby surgeries?  
 
No Lingfield does not have the capacity, there is not another Surgery within 
Lingfield or within the boundary of this site.  
 

3. Would Lingfield Surgery need to be extended to be able to cover the 
additional need? 
 
Yes, we would need to consider a small extension that will require 
architectural and planning input and it is likely to reduce onsite parking. 
 

4. Would there be sufficient car parking at the surgery? 
 
No, a Practice of this size ideally would have access to c22-27 car parking 
slots. They have circa 15 spaces including 2 disabled bays and this is 
currently mitigated in that the Practice is within the town and staff tandem 
park and patients/staff have access to the local public car park a short 
distance away. 

 
5. Would it require more Doctors/Nurses and other staff? 

 
Yes, it would require more Doctors and Nurses 

 
6. Taking into consideration the answers you have provided for the above 

questions would you be able to provide a run-down of the likely costs 
involved that would allow Lingfield Surgery to provide medical care for the 
future occupiers of this care home? 
 

41. Taking into consideration the above answers the likely costs involved would be 
£195,891 this figure is for the upgrade to the practice, not additional staff. 

 
 
 

Page 26



 

13 
 

42. TDC Housing Team 

 

The applicant is proposing a development of 152 units with communal facilities and 
consulting rooms as part of a proposed integrated retirement community.  Where 
residential dwellings are capable of being independent dwellings they can he 
regarded as dwellings even where that is an element of care provided.  Policy CSP4 
does not differentiate between Use Classes and therefore applies to this application. 

The applicant has submitted a viability appraisal that supports their assertion that 
the scheme cannot viably support an onsite affordable housing contribution.  This 
appraisal has been robustly tested by an independent viability consultant on behalf 
of the Council and has concluded that an off-site contribution could be sought. 

Council officers have agreed to accept a commuted sum of £500k in lieu of onsite 
affordable housing which will be used to subsidise the Council’s own house building 
programme.  It is the Council’s understanding that any higher commuted sum would 
render the scheme unviable which would in turn jeopardise the future of the charity. 

43. Police 

 

In order to reduce crime, the principles of Crime Prevention Through Environmental 
Design (CPTED) has been applied, with it being set out that whilst the car parking 
provision for residents, staff and visitors has been conveniently located, some car 
parking spaces have little natural observation (for security measures) and the design 
and access statement provides little in terms of car park security.  However, as this 
is not the only consideration for crime prevention in terms of the development as a 
whole, it would be of benefit to discuss these further with the applicant. This would 
support Approved document Q of the Building Regulations as well as satisfying the 
applicant’s submitted intentions to achieve a sustainable development.  It is advised 
that use of the Home Office Secured by Design (SD) award scheme as a planning 
condition would provide both the developer and future residents with police 
preferred minimal level of security, reducing both the fear of, and the opportunity of, 
crime in addition to supporting community sustainability clearly in line with current 
policy. 

  

44. SCC Archaeology  

 

As a summary of the comments received, it has been advised that the site is likely 
to be of higher archaeological value than anticipated by the applicant.  Therefore, if 
approved, a condition should be imposed on any permission to require further 
investigation of the site as part of the undertaking of the proposed development 

 

45. Gatwick Airport Safeguarding 

 

No objections, but an informative should be added in the event that wind turbines 
are added on the site as they can impact on the safe operation of aircraft through 
interference with aviation radar. 

 

46. SCC Rights of Way  

 

In summary, it has been highlighted that Dormansland Footpaths 381, 383 and 384 
are located within the Young Epilepsy site and Dormansland Footpath 379 runs 
along the eastern boundary.  Overall, no objection is raised to the application but 
works of improvement to the existing footpaths are encouraged and informatives 
are provided.” 

 

Page 27



 

14 
 

47. SCC Listed Buildings 

 

The two heritage statements provided (one for the site as a whole and another for 
the listed buildings affected by the scheme) is sufficient to meet the requirements of 
the NPPF.  

 

The significance of the buildings can be summarised as a former farmstead which 
developed on the edge of common land from the 16th to 18th centuries and later 
formed part of the school site. Key aspects include the use of materials, plan form, 
scale and surviving historic fabric.  

 

The immediate setting of the building around a yard contributes to understanding 
their historic interest as former farmstead buildings. The use of the site as a car park 
detracts from this. The approach to the buildings along St Piers Lane also 
contributes to their setting as the road widens and the view opens up once the site 
of the former common land is reached.  

 

The heritage statement is quite dismissive of the architectural quality and historic 
interest of the early buildings. The School Buildings, Administrative Block Buildings, 
Cory, The Chapel and Garden and Tinling Cottages all have clear architectural 
interest in their form and elevational appearance and they all have some historic 
interest forming part of the Lingfield Colony site. This would be considered sufficient 
to meet the requirements set out on the Buildings of Character list, although their 
significance is only of low value owing to their degree of alteration. In addition, 1 and 
2 Farm Cottages should be considered worthy of inclusion on the basis of their good 
quality brickwork and history as part of the farm site and, as such, they should be 
considered non-designated heritage assets under paragraph 203 of the NPPF.  

 

The buildings identified as Surge, Whitley, Basden and the Red Cross building are 
not considered to be of sufficient interest to merit consideration under paragraph 
203 of the NPPF because they either did not form part of the initial development of 
the site or they have limited architectural merit.  

 

The scheme is for quite a major redevelopment of the site with new living 
accommodation to ensure Young Epilepsy remains viable. This, and the continued 
use of the listed buildings, is considered to be a public benefit. Overall, the scheme 
would be acceptable although there are a number of areas set out below which need 
to be addressed.  

 

The scheme proposes the demolition of a number of non-designated heritage 
assets. 1 and 2 Farm Cottages are of a reasonably good architectural character and 
their retention would be supported should the Green Belt balance be met. However, 
their demolition would not constitute sufficient grounds to refuse the application.  

 

The replacement buildings would not be considered harmful to the setting of built 
heritage assets. However, design matters for new buildings where they do not 
impact the setting of the listed building are not relevant to the heritage assessment 
but the design of the scheme. 

 

The proposed landscaping scheme and demolition of the maintenance building will 
result in a public benefit to the listed buildings by enhancing their setting. The 
scheme is well thought out overall with the exception of the stainless-steel bollards 
which should be replaced with a more appropriate alternative.  

Page 28



 

15 
 

 

The alterations to the link building would be acceptable. Details of the materials 
appear to be applied and the floor plan changes to the building would not result in 
any harm to the listed buildings.  

 

The proposals for the granary are deliberately low key because of the challenges of 
finding a new use for the building without fundamentally changing its character and 
officers are open to alternative options. At present the extent of repairs to the 
structure are unknown because the first floor is inaccessible due to the staircase. 
As such, a condition should be added to ensure the extent of repairs is agreed in 
writing to prevent harm to the special interest of the listed building.  

 

Should the application be considered favourably, conditions relating to the taking of 
photographic and written records of the buildings of historic interest should be 
secured.  

Furthermore, details of repairs to the timber framing on the Granary should be 
submitted. 

 

Finally, should the benefits to the historic built environment be required as part of 
the planning balance, a Grampian condition should be added to ensure any benefits 
take place before any harm.  

 

48. Contamination Advice 

 

The information provided is limited due to a lack of context on the plans and the 
absence of a desk top survey. The inclusion of Inspector’s reports would indicate 
that the site is controversial and the risks from contamination are low. On this basis 
a pre-commencement condition should be added to any favourable decision in order 
to ensure that, should any contamination be evident from initial surveys the 
appropriate mitigation methods are carried out. 

 

49. Historic England 

 

No comment 

 

50. Environmental Health 

 

No objections 

 

51. SCC Local Lead Flood Authority (Drainage and Flooding Team), 

 

Insufficient information has been set out with regard to the following: 

• Ground investigations confirming suitability 

• A drainage design that takes into account SuDS hierarchy 

Drainage calculations illustrating existing and proposed surface water discharge 
rates and volumes  

 

However, in the event of a favourable decision, pre-commencement conditions 
should be attached relating to the submission of details of the design of a surface 
water drainage scheme and a verification report that the scheme is acceptable prior 
to the occupation of development. Finally, if the construction works impact on a 
watercourse, Surrey County Council should be contacted. 

Page 29



 

16 
 

52. Surrey Wildlife Trust 
 

To-date three responses were received, with the comments summarised as follows: 

 

With respect to bats, the trees at the site have been shown to have a low potential 
to be used for bat roosting. Pre-commencement conditions should be imposed 
relating to bat presence/likely absence in the buildings to be demolished. Details of 
appropriate mitigation works should also be secured by condition along with a 
condition for the submission of detailed drawings of the Bat Tower. 

 

53. Tree officer 

 

Looking at the proposals in detail it is apparent to the tree officer that a considerable 
amount of effort has gone into designing a layout that retains as many high and 
moderate quality trees as is reasonably possible, and that the retained trees have 
been given due consideration in terms of their sustainable retention and protection 
during demolition and construction. There is an acceptable amount of compensatory 
planting provided.  

 

The ancient nearby woodland has also been provided with a buffer of 15m which is 
considered sufficient in the context of this site. The proposal accords with planning 
policy in relation to trees and soft landscape. However, if approved the following 
conditions relating to a construction management plan including tree protection 
details and an arboricultural method statement, and a hard and soft landscaping 
scheme should be applied. 

 

Publicity Responses 

 

54. 53 representations have been received raising the following matters:  
 

• 51 letters had no objections (with 9 employees from Young Epilepsy) to the 
development with comments as follows: 
- Will allow Young Epilepsy to continue its work 
- Will allow YE to continue its valuable work and as largest employer for 

Lingfield would allow it to retain jobs 
- Visual improvement to the locality by removal of redundant buildings. 

Investment to YE would be beneficial to community and beyond 
- Greatly improve the lives of those with Epilepsy  
- Provision of retirement homes will allow relatives to stay in close proximity 

to their families 
- Development is vital for the survival of YE and restoration of Green Belt 
- Development will have a positive impact on the local economy 
- Improvement to the natural environment for the whole community will be 

massive  
- Positive impact by removing dangerous and unsightly derelict buildings 
- Provision of retirement homes will allow older residents to downsize and free 

up family homes in the area 
- Provision of more jobs  
- Lack of housing supply for retirement homes – this application will fulfil a 

need 
 

• 2 general comments relate to the following: 
- The possibility of a new doctor’s surgery 

Page 30



 

17 
 

- Previous application for new school building was granted on the proviso that 
the derelict buildings were demolished. Why are the same buildings being 
used to justify further development? 

 

Assessment 

 

55. The assessment of the application will address the following key issues in turn: 

 

• Principle of Development; 

• Impact on the Green Belt; 

• Assessment of the Proposed Use and Housing Need; 

• Infrastructure; 

• Affordable Housing; 

• Socio-economic Matters; 

• Locational Sustainability; 

• Highway Safety, Access and Parking; 

• Character and Appearance; 

• Impact on Heritage Assets; 

• Archaeology; 

• Residential Amenity; 

• Flood Risk; 

• Trees; 

• Biodiversity; 
Renewable Energy and Energy Efficiency; and 

• Very Special Circumstances. 
 

56. In the assessment of what Very Special Circumstances (VSC) may exist to justify 
overriding Green Belt policy and granting planning permission, the following 
weightings (from highest to lowest) will be attributed in considering each VSC: 
 

➢ Substantial 
➢ Significant 
➢ Moderate 
➢ Limited. 

 

Principle of Development 

 

Sustainability principles 

 

57. The NPPF 2021 emphasises that the purpose of the planning system is to achieve 
sustainable development and there are three overarching objectives by which to 
achieve this goal: 

 

a) an economic objective – to help build a strong, responsive and competitive 
economy, by ensuring that sufficient land of the right types is available in the 
right places and at the right time to support growth, innovation and improved 
productivity; and by identifying and coordinating the provision of 
infrastructure. 

b) a social objective – to support strong, vibrant and healthy communities, by 
ensuring that a sufficient number and range of homes can be provided to 
meet the needs of present and future generations; and by fostering well-
designed, beautiful and safe places, with accessible services and open 

Page 31



 

18 
 

spaces that reflect current and future needs and support communities’ 
health, social and cultural well-being; and 

c) an environmental objective – to protect and enhance our natural, built and 
historic environment, including making effective use of land, improving 
biodiversity, using natural resources prudently, minimising waste and 
pollution, and mitigating and adapting to climate change, including moving 
to a low carbon economy. 

 

58. The NPPF also states that local planning authorities should support a pattern of 
development which, where reasonable to do so, facilitates the use of sustainable 
modes of transport, and that developments should be located where practical to give 
priority to pedestrian and cycle movements, and have access to high quality public 
transport facilities. The NPPF does, however, recognise that opportunities to 
maximise sustainable transport solutions will vary from urban to rural areas. Policy 
CSP1 of the Tandridge District Core Strategy (2008) seeks to promote sustainable 
patterns of travel and make best use of previously developed land, by directing 
development towards the existing built-up areas of the District, our Category 1 
settlements. Development appropriate to the needs of rural communities may be 
permitted in our Category 2 settlements. The latter comprises those settlements 
defined as Larger Rural Settlements and those washed over by the Green Belt but 
that have a defined boundary. 
 

59. As highlighted above, the site is located within Green Belt. The site does not contain 
any development allocations in the emerging Local Plan. 

 

Location and Transport 

 

60. The nearest major transport connection is Lingfield Railway Station (approximately 
1km) which can be accessed via public footpath 381 to the west of the site. The 
nearest bus stop can be found along St Pier's Lane approximately 430 metres away, 
and is currently served by the 231, 233, 236, 281, 315 and 609 buses. The site is 
approximately 1 km from Lingfield, designated as a Larger Rural Settlement area in 
the Tandridge Local Plan. 
 

61. Racecourse Road (B2028) provides the most significant road connection in close 
proximity to the site. Overall, it is considered that the site does not currently benefit 
from sustainable transport options from this location. Given the use of the site and 
the needs of the existing and prospective users of the site, there would without some 
alternative provision be a significant reliance on private cars for journeys.  
 

62. It was concluded by officers that the proposal, as submitted, would have failed to 
deliver a sustainable form of development in transportation terms as it would not 
benefit from adequate levels of transport connectivity. However, in order to address 
this previous shortcoming, it is now proposed that a timetabled electric minibus 
service will be operated for the use of residents and staff in perpetuity. The  minibus 
will provide transport to nearby settlement areas as well as carrying out day trips for 
residents. In addition to this, a car club will be provided for the residents in the form 
of an electric car. This will be promoted as part of the sales and marketing for the 
development, and free membership will be provided to all residents on the site for 3 
years with £30 driving credit to all residents on the site.  
 

63. The specification for both the minibus service and car club have been discussed 
and agreed by the applicants with SCH. 

 

Page 32



 

19 
 

64. The applicant has also agreed to deliver a contribution of £12,300 (£6.150 per TP) 
for the monitoring of the Workplace Travel Plan and the Residential Care 
Community Framework Travel Plan.  This would be secured by Section 106 in 
addition to the provision of the 15-seater demand responsive electric minibus that 
would be made available for residents. A planning condition relating to the provision 
of an electric club car would also be put in place. These provisions have been 
agreed with the SCH and would comply with DP5 of the Tandridge Local Plan Part 
2: Detailed Polies 2014-2029. Although it doesn’t improve public transport for the 
locality as a whole, the bus service provided would assist the future occupiers of the 
development proposal particularly those with reduced mobility in accordance with 
CSP12 of the Tandridge District Core Strategy. These issues will be carefully 
weighed in the planning balance at the end of the report. 

 

65. The incorporation of these measures would provide a more sustainable alternative 
by reducing the need for individual cars and, although the development proposal 
would not align with Policy CSP1 of the Core Strategy 2008, it would now provide a 
more sustainable solution in line with the objectives of the NPPF 2021. 

 

Principle of the land use 

 

66. The existing site just outside the village of Lingfield is known as St Piers Estate. The 
site comprises a school and college run by the national charity, Young Epilepsy 
(YE). YE provides highly specialised educational facilities with residential and day 
care for 160 children and young adults with complex needs from living with epilepsy, 
autism and learning difficulties. The Estate contains substantial built development 
which will be described below but much of this built development is no longer fit for 
purpose for use by the school and college. 
 

67. Services for children and young people living with epilepsy, autism and learning 
difficulties have been delivered from St Piers Estate (the Estate) in Lingfield, for over 
120 years. Services remain focused on providing essential life changing special 
education, health and care services to young people with a range of special 
educational needs, with a specialism in epilepsy. Services are commissioned, 
primarily, by local authorities and NHS Trusts across London and the South East of 
England. Delivered by YE, these services currently employ approximately 397 (FTE) 
local people, making YE the largest employer in Tandridge District. 
 

68. Audley has a subject to planning agreement for part of the western area of the site 
for the development of a residential care community (Class C2). The intention is for 
the capital raised, through the eventual sale, to be used to fund critical works to the 
Estate. That is to bring YE’s operational buildings in line with Department for 
Education Condition Grade B by addressing the maintenance backlog and reducing 
overheads to remain competitive in the special education market. This is critical to 
provide a safe and secure environment for pupils and staff. 
 

69. YE requires significant investment to remain financially sustainable beyond 2025. 
Without this investment there is a real possibility that   397 people will lose their jobs 
at YE. The children and young people with special educational needs, will be at risk 
of not being able to continue accessing education. The coming together of Audley 
and YE represents a final chance to save YE and secure its long-term future. 
 

70. This site is within the Green Belt and would normally be considered unsuitable in 
planning policy terms for housing development. The site is considered to play a 
functional role as Green Belt land to check unrestricted sprawl from the surrounding 

Page 33



 

20 
 

settlement areas and to protect the open countryside and this will be explored further 
below.  Accordingly, the adopted development plan does not suggest that this site 
would be suitable for housing or extra care housing.  
 

71. Given that the site lies in the Green Belt an assessment needs to be made in respect 
of its appropriateness and whether very special circumstances exist that outweigh 
any identified harm to the Green Belt.  

 

Impact on the Green Belt 

 

Policy Background 

 

72. The proposal site is located within the Green Belt and the National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF) 2021 advises that the fundamental aim of the Green Belt is to 
prevent urban sprawl by keeping land permanently open. The essential 
characteristics of Green Belts are their openness and permanence and, to this end, 
paragraph 147 of the NPPF says that new built development in this area would be 
considered as inappropriate and therefore harmful and should not be approved 
except in ‘Very Special Circumstances’ (VSC). Furthermore, NPPF Paragraph 148 
requires that in considering any planning application, local planning authorities 
should ensure substantial weight is given to any harm to the Green Belt. The same 
paragraph adds that VSC’s will not exist unless the potential harm to the Green Belt, 
and any other harm, is clearly outweighed by other considerations.   
 

73. Paragraph 149 of the NPPF sets out a number of exceptions for the construction of 
new buildings in the Green Belt none of which apply to the proposed development.  
 

74. Local Plan Policies DP10 and DP13 reflect the Green Belt provisions of the NPPF 
2021. 
 

75. In order to consider the acceptability of the proposal with regard to its impact on the 
Green Belt, it is necessary to refer to the following key questions:  

 

1. Whether the proposals constitute inappropriate development in the Green 
Belt;  
 

2. The effect of the proposals on the open nature of the Green Belt and the 
purposes of including land within it; and  

 
3. Whether the harm to the Green Belt is clearly outweighed by other 

considerations so as to amount to the VSC’s necessary to justify 
inappropriate development. 
 

76. The application is accompanied by a Planning Statement dated July 2022. This sets 
out the Applicant’s own assessment of the Green Belt impact as well as setting out 
its case for VSC’s.  

 

Q1. Does the proposal constitute inappropriate development in the Green Belt  

 

77. Paragraph 134 of the NPPF 2021 states that the Government attaches great 
importance to Green Belts. The fundamental aim of Green Belt policy is to prevent 
urban sprawl by keeping land permanently open; the essential characteristics of 
Green Belts are their openness and their permanence.  
 

Page 34



 

21 
 

78. Paragraph 138 of the Framework sets out the five purposes of the Green Belt:  

 

a) to check the unrestricted sprawl of large built-up areas;  
b) to prevent neighbouring towns merging into one another;  
c) to assist in safeguarding the countryside from encroachment;  
d) to preserve the setting and special character of historic towns; and  
e) to assist in urban regeneration, by encouraging the recycling of derelict and 

other urban land.  
 

79. Pockets of development across the application site come within the definition of 
previously developed land in Annes 2 Glossary of the NPPF but even given this 
status  the proposed development does not fall within an exception to Green Belt 
policy in paragraph 149(g) of the NPPF.   
 

80. It is considered that the site actively serves at least three of the five purposes of the 
Green Belt (identified at NPPF para 138 a, c & e) and the site’s inclusion within the 
Green Belt boundary is therefore considered to be strongly justified. 
 

81. The function of this particular section of the Green Belt is important in protecting the 
surrounding countryside from encroachment as well as preserving the historic 
setting of the village of Lingfield. The proposals would result in a significant spatial 
and visual impact of new built development, albeit offset to some degree by removal 
of the redundant buildings on the site. Consequently, there would be harm to the 
purposes of including this land within the Green Belt and also to its openness. 
 

82. Paragraph 147 of the NPPF 2021 makes clear that inappropriate development is, 
by definition, harmful to the Green Belt and should not be approved except in very 
special circumstances.  
 

83. Paragraph 149 of the NPPF 2021 regards the construction of new buildings as 
inappropriate development within the Green Belt.  
 

84. In such cases, the NPPF 2021 advises at paragraph 148 that “when considering 
any planning application, local planning authorities should ensure that substantial 
weight is given to any harm to the Green Belt. VSC’s will not exist unless the 
potential harm to the Green Belt by reason of inappropriateness, and any other harm 
resulting from the proposal, is clearly outweighed by other considerations 
(paragraph 148). Following further considerations below the LPA will conclude its 
assessment with a review of the applicant’s case for VSC’s.  

 

Impact on Openness 

 

85. The extent of the existing built form is set out within the Site Description above. 
However, it is relevant to this section of the assessment to highlight that 42 existing 
buildings at the site would be demolished. These comprise single and two storey 
buildings including a mixture of buildings that are traditional and modern in 
appearance. These buildings are a mixture of flat roofed and pitched roof buildings 
that are deemed to be obsolete and outdated by the applicant. The buildings to be 
demolished are shown below: 

 

Page 35



 

22 
 

 
Fig. 1.  Buildings to be demolished highlighted orange. 

 

86. The buildings to be demolished include: 

 

• At the east of the site, a maintenance block and four family dwellings  

• At the centre of the site, 11 bungalows, 4 semi-detached dwellings, an 
outbuilding and two large residences to the east of the site. 

• At the northwest of the site, the House in the Wood residence (See fig 2), the 
Speech and Language Block (See fig 3), the Hostel (See fig 3), the Resource 
and Admin Block (See fig 4), various Young Epilepsy school workshops (See fig 
4) and School buildings along the northern boundary (See fig 5) 

• At the southwest of the site, the Chapel (fig 6) and 4 residential properties (fig 
7). 

 

 
Fig.2 The House in the Wood residence to the north of St Piers Lane 

 

Page 36



 

23 
 

 
Fig 3 Speech and language block (right) and hostel (left) 

 

 
Fig 4. Workshops and resource centre and admin to the north of St Piers Lane 

 

 
Fig 5. One of the school buildings on the northern boundary 

 

 
Fig 6. The chapel to the south of St Piers Lane 

 

Page 37



 

24 
 

 
Fig 7. The residential properties to the south of St Piers Lane – 3 x two storey and 1 x bungalow 

 

87. This proposal seeks to replace the demolished buildings as shown below: 

 

 
Fig. 6.  Buildings to be erected or extended coloured purple and blue. 

 

88. At the east of the site, there would be an improvement to openness resulting from 
the demolition of buildings.  This would be visible from the many public vantage 
points around the site.  However, the new buildings to be erected to the west of the 
site as part of the Audley development would result in a large expanse of buildings 
which would impact on the openness of the green space within the expanse of this 
site. This would be visible particularly from views from the west of the site and 
particularly from vantage points along St Piers Lane. 
 

89. The applicant’s submissions provided calculations relating to existing and proposed 
building volumes. Although full survey drawings were not provided, the calculations 
were based on information collated with the use of a drone. The volume of the 
existing buildings across the whole site is 158,736 cubic metres with the demolished 
buildings (amounting to 48,813 cubic metres) used to offset some of the volume of 
the proposed development. The additional volume for the YE extensions would 
amount to 3,437 cubic metres and the additional volume for the residential care 
facilities would total 69,785. The total volume of buildings within the Audley site 
would therefore total 183,145 cubic metres if approved. This represents an increase 
in volume of 15%.  
 

90. In the Planning Statement submitted as part of the application, it is set out that there 
would be an overall reduction in developed footprint of circa 3% and, as such, it is 
the position of the applicant that the proposal would not have a materially greater 

Page 38



 

25 
 

impact on openness.   However, it is considered that the volumetric increase 
demonstrates that the overall enlargement of built form at the site would cause the 
development to have a significant impact on openness.  In this regard, the benefit 
of reducing footprint is undermined by the effect of erecting larger and more 
imposing buildings with a greater spatial impact on Green Belt openess. 

 

91. The development would involve the erection of 6 buildings to the north of St Piers 
Lane and 8 buildings to the south.  The proposed buildings would be much larger in 
scale and mass, with a mixture of 2 and 3 storey buildings replacing the single storey 
and two storey buildings that currently exist on the western part of the site.  As a 
result of the intensification of the use of this western area of the site, in conjunction 
with their bulk and massing, it is considered that the proposed development would 
have a significant and impact on openness.  This would be exaggerated by the 
buildings being located further into the core of the site within what is currently a large 
area of open space adjacent to St Piers Lane, which is a highly visible area, and this 
increases the prominence of the built form of the development. As a result of the 
proposed Audley development, the impact of the bulk and massing would be greater 
on the western side of the site, this is because there would be a more compact 
cluster of buildings, of a uniform height in a highly visible location on a public 
bridleway/road. The green spaces that exist in this location currently make a positive 
contribution to the openness of the Green Belt. This is demonstrated on the aerial 
image and proposed plan that are shown below: 

 

      
Fig 7 The existing site      Fig 8 The proposed site 

 

The purposes of the Green Belt 

 

92. In relation to the purposes of the Green Belt that are set out above, the development 
would be remote from all settlements and, as such, would not cause the unrestricted 
sprawl of a large built-up areas, would not lead to neighbouring towns merging into 
one another and would not affect the setting and special character of historic towns.   

 

93. Part of the site, to the east is to be partially re-wilded which improves the openness 
as discussed above. However, the proposal would lead to some development within 
part of the countryside that does not currently feature built form and, as such, would 
encroach into the countryside.  Officers have weighed up the benefits from the re-
wilding of the east of the site, and the impact of the future development on the open 
countryside to the west and, on balance, there is considered to be moderate harm 
to Green Belt openness overall.  

 

Green Belt Summary and Very Special Circumstances 

 

94. For the reasons set out above, the proposal is deemed to constitute inappropriate 
development in the Green Belt which is, by definition, harmful to the Green Belt. 

Page 39



 

26 
 

Given the quantum of existing built development on the application site, the 
proposed development would have a moderate harmful effect on openness and 
would also be in conflict with the purposes of the Green Belt. The NPPF requires 
that substantial weight is afforded to each of these elements of harm. 
 

95. For the development to be approved, it must be demonstrated that the harm 
identified above and elsewhere within this report is clearly outweighed by the 
benefits arising from other matters that are considered to represent VSC’s for 
overriding Green Belt policy. An assessment in this regard will be made at the end 
of this report. 

 

Assessment of the Proposed Use and Housing Need 

 

Assessment of Use 

 

96. The proposed units are described as falling within Use Class C2 (Residential 
institutions). This Use Class includes residential care homes, hospitals, nursing 
homes, boarding schools, residential colleges and training centres. 
 

97. In this instance, it is considered necessary to undertake an assessment of the use 
of the proposal having regard to guidance prepared by Surrey County Council who 
have prepared a Commissioning Statement (April 2019) which relates to 
accommodation with care, residential & nursing care for older people. This sets out 
several questions which are each responded to as set out below: 

 

1. Does the proposed scheme have facilities not normally associated with 
retirement or sheltered housing such as bar/ lounge, kitchen/dining room, 
laundry, crafts room, IT suite, shop, gym etc? 
 

Yes – it would include a bar, bistro, restaurant, library, owners lounge, gym, 
and a CQC registered care office, multifunction room, commercial kitchen, 
laundry, offices, hydrotherapy pool, steam room and sauna, spa reception, 
treatment room, salon, fitness studio, guest suites, and hobby room.  

 

2. Will 24-hour care services be available to all residents according to their 
needs? 
 

Yes – The amount of care provided depends on the needs of the individual 
resident: it could range from a regular 30-minute slot to assist with showering 
or preparing lunch, to 24-hour care, seven days a week. The aim is that, if 
necessary, care can be provided within a person’s own accommodation at 
very high levels of need and dependency, including end of life care. However, 
as this Statement explains, the concept and provision of care, including day 
to day monitoring and regular contact, is pervasive throughout Audley’s 
schemes and is not limited to the residents’ personal accommodation.  

 

3. Can residents receive/ purchase care from an on-site, CQC registered home 
base (domiciliary) care team which operates in partnership with the future 
landlord?  
 

Domiciliary Care is available on-site at all of our schemes provided by Audley 
Care (or Mayfield Care) who are registered and regularly audited by the CQC. 
These services are made available to residents 24 hours a day. 

Page 40



 

27 
 

 

4. Does the scheme offer an opportunity for elderly owner-occupiers to purchase 
their own property in a scheme where an increasing level of care can be 
provided? 
 

Each house or apartment is sold on a long leasehold basis for a term of at 
least 125 years. 

 

5. Does the scheme anticipate a range of need levels on site, which could include 
support to people living with dementia? 
 

 The Use Class and Operator Statement supplied by Audley sets out the 
following, ‘Due to the range of care services that Audley can provide, we are 
able to commit to our residents, through their lease, that once they have 
moved in, they have the right to live in their property for the rest of their lives 
whatever their care needs might be. The only caveat is that should their mental 
health deteriorate to the level where they become a danger to themselves or 
others, they may be asked / required to move to more suitable accommodation 
in a community able to deal with their mental condition and provide secure 
accommodation.’ 

 

6. Will the scheme help older people stay independent and remain active in old 
age? 
 

Yes – this appears to be the case. In addition to a hydrotherapy pool, there is 
also a fitness studio, with examples of the classes and activities available to 
residents include Yoga and Tai Chi, cinema nights, guest lectures, visits and 
day trips. Activities encouraged include, group exercise classes, art and music 
classes, games events, cultural excursions, shopping trips and gardening 
club. 

 

7. Can the developer evidence how residents may be able to avoid admission 
into residential care as their needs increase? 
 

It is understood that residents would no longer be accommodated in the 
development, if there was to be a ‘deterioration in mental health’ as set out in 
Audley’s Use Class and Operator Statement. It is unclear if the site operator 
would have obligations for residents ongoing care when they leave the facility 
or if they would be reliant on the County’s care system to take over resident’s 
care provision.  

 

8. What is the average age on entry to existing schemes? 
 

The submitted Use Class and Operator Statement states “Although the 
minimum qualifying age for our residents is 60, the average age of our 
residents when they first come to live at one of our schemes is currently 77 
years, and the average age of all residents is 79 (information valid as of 
November 2020). The average period that a resident will live at one of our 
Villages is seven and a half years.” 

 
9. How much care per week was purchased during the first year of operation? 

 

Unknown. 

Page 41



 

28 
 

 

10. Whether the proposal constitutes C2 development 

 

The applicant has confirmed that that all residents would have a Care and 
Wellbeing Package which includes at least 2 hours of care services per week.   

Following consultation SCC Social Care has confirmed that 2 hours of care a 
week is acceptable to constitute residential care.  The care is divided into 30-
minute slots, so it wouldn’t cover a daily need.  

 

98. Overall, Officers are satisfied that the retirement and extra care element of the 
development proposal would be used for purposes falling within Use Class C2. 

 

 Housing Need 

 

99. Policy CSP7 requires proposals to contain an appropriate mix of dwellings in 
accordance with current identified needs. The Council’s evidence base includes a 
Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA) 2015 and its 2018 update.  
 

100. More specific to this application, Policy CSP7 states that the Council will encourage 
the provision of housing for the elderly and for people with special needs, where 
appropriate whilst avoiding an undue concentration in any location. 
 

101. CS Policy CSP7 encourages the provision of housing for the elderly where 
appropriate while CS policy CSP8 directly engages with Extra Care Housing and 
sets out what should be considered. The Tandridge District Housing Strategy also 
recognises the need for sheltered accommodation for older people within the 
District, focusing on those in real need of support. Its strategic approach includes 
focusing and improving sheltered housing in five key areas including 
Lingfield/Dormansland. The Council’s Annual Monitoring Report 2021-22 records 
that the SHMA prepared for the Local Plan 2033 identifies the need for 50 Extra 
Care units per annum since 2016 giving a total requirement to date (31 March 2022) 
of 312. The number of Extra Care Housing units provided over the period since 2016 
was 16 indicating a significant unmet need for such housing and this represents a 
material consideration in favour of a grant of planning permission. 

 

102. TDC’s emerging Local Plan 2033 includes policy TLP14 (Specialist Need Housing 
and Extra Care). The provision of some extra care is enabled through site allocation 
in an area where there is a recognised need, as well as supporting the provision of 
additional units where they can be demonstrated to be appropriate. An important 
element contained in the Local Plan 2033 is the need for extra care to be sustainable 
by virtue of its location. However, given the stage currently reached in the 
examination of the Local Plan 2033 very limited weight can be afforded to its policies 
which may change. 
 

103. Surrey County Council has published commissioning statements at district level to 
assist developers, care providers and local planning authorities on the strategic 
direction, minimal development expectations and future needs for extra care 
housing. The Commissioning Statement for Tandridge (April 2019 onwards) states 
that development proposals for extra care should demonstrate the level of 
accessibility to local facilities through a choice of accessible transport options and 
to be in a location that would not face any barriers to leaving the setting or returning 
to it (such as being located on a hill or other gradients which would present 
challenges to people who have difficulties walking or who use wheelchairs). The 
location of housing is a key consideration for older people and factors to consider 

Page 42



 

29 
 

include proximity to good public transport, local amenities, health services and town 
centres. The setting should not only enable people to create a new community with 
their new neighbours on-site, but the setting should be sympathetic and supportive 
of people maintaining their links with the wider community. 
 

104. The application site lies 850 metres to the east of the Larger Rural Settlement of 
Lingfield in the southeast of Tandridge District although officers note that the 
amenities would be a kilometre away if accessed by local roads. The site sits wholly 
within Green Belt land and is located outside of settlement areas. As such, in 
locational terms this site is relatively isolated and set within the countryside, well 
separated from the built-up area. However, notwithstanding this, there is an 
argument for the development based on housing need. This development proposal 
would result in the provision of 152 extra care units for the older residents with needs 
for supported living. This could potentially free up family housing for larger families 
requiring more space and this is a material consideration in support of the 
application.  

 

Infrastructure 

 

105. CS Policy CSP11 (Infrastructure and Services) sets out that appropriate levels of 
infrastructure and services will be sought. The Council’s evidence base includes an 
Infrastructure Delivery Plan (2019) (IDP) that identifies the district’s infrastructure 
requirements, the priority of infrastructure to be delivered and how it will be funded. 
This stance is echoed within TLP 2033 Policy TLP 04 (Infrastructure Delivery and 
Financial Contributions). 
 

106. As set out in Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) (Planning Obligations), “planning 
obligations assist in mitigating the impact of development which benefits local 
communities and supports the provision of local infrastructure”.  
 

107. It is recognised that to secure infrastructure funding any request must meet the three 
tests set out under Reg 122 of the CIL Regs 2010 and as such must be necessary 
to make the development acceptable in planning terms, directly related to the 
development and fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development. 
Such contributions have been secured through the negotiation of a   S106 Legal 
Agreement as referred to below., As such, the development proposals meet the 
objectives of Policy CSP11.  
 

108. Officers highlight that C2 accommodation is not CIL liable.  
 

109. The submitted Planning Statement discusses the pressures local healthcare 
providers are facing. It states, ‘Offering older people a better choice of 
accommodation to suit their changing needs can help them live independently for 
longer, feel more connected to their communities and help reduce costs to the social 
care and health systems.’ The Planning Statement also sets out that the provision 
of specialist care accommodation brings with it the provision of in-house care and 
support which helps to take pressure off local health services. This is achieved 
because there is a lower incidence of in-home incidents, and the need to call on 
existing local services from GPs and other health practitioners.  Audley’s own 
experience within these retirement facilities is that the services provided and 
arranged on-site by Audley Care staff can help reduce pressure on local health 
services (including GPs) directly in the following ways: 

 

Page 43



 

30 
 

• Arranging for the local pharmacy to attend site to administer flu jabs and 
vaccinations to residents. 

• Undertaking urine dip-tests – where normally this would require a visit to the 
GP practice. 

• Accompanying owners on video calls with their GPs, which avoids the need for 
a physical appointment. 

• Making telephone calls to GPs, on behalf of residents (with consent), to 
discuss medication, nutrition, concerns etc. which avoids the need for a 
physical appointment. 

• Preventative action (focussing on nutrition, physiotherapy, exercise) reduces 
need for reactive visits to GPs. 

• Audley care can take occupants to GPs – this facilitates access to a greater 
number of practices (within catchment) and increases choice. 

• Audley Care staff work with District Nurses and can facilitate appointments on 
site, and group appointments together for efficiency.   
 

110. While these services were considered to go some way towards helping the residents 
to obtain medical care, concerns remain with regard to residents with greater health 
needs, such as those with long term health conditions who are likely to need to visit 
nurses, occupational therapists and other health professionals that sit outside of the 
scope of basic nursing care. However, the treatment provided is likely to comprise 
basic nursing care with a reliance on local public health services provided by NHS 
for specialist treatment or hospital care.  
 

111. The Audley care package provides an opportunity for older people to live more 
independently in their own accommodation while having access to 24-hour on-site 
care and a range of shared communal facilities. The goal is to avoid the dependency 
or institutionalisation that can arise when there is always someone available to do 
tasks for an older person. The accommodation and all facilities are designed for 
people who may become very frail and/or have significant mobility needs. The aim 
is that, if necessary, care can be provided within a person’s own accommodation at 
very high levels of need and dependency, including end of life care. However, as 
this Statement explains, the concept and provision of care, including day to day 
monitoring and regular contact, is pervasive throughout Audley’s schemes and is 
not limited to the residents’ personal accommodation.  
 

112. Residents would pay a monthly management fee that covers the ongoing costs of 
running and maintaining the main buildings and landscaped grounds and the 
expense of any major works required, as well as building insurance. The monthly 
management fee would also include the cost of the Care and Wellbeing Package. 
Due to the range of care services that Audley can provide, they maintain that they 
are able to commit to the residents, through their lease, that once they have moved 
in they have the right to live in their property for the rest of their lives whatever their 
care needs might be. The only caveat is that should their mental health deteriorate 
to the level where they become a danger to themselves or others, they may be 
asked/required to move to more suitable accommodation in a community able to 
deal with their mental condition and provide secure accommodation. 
 

113. Officers consulted NHS Surrey and received a response confirming that the 
development would put pressure on local NHS healthcare services, and the 
Integrated Care Board are concerned that the health proposals put forward by the 
applicant would not completely mitigate its impact on local healthcare services.  
 

Page 44



 

31 
 

114. Following on from these concerns, NHS Surrey assessed the availability of Lingfield 
Surgery in terms of its capacity to serve the needs of the proposed development. 
They commented that the surgery would have no option (in today’s position) but to 
accept more patients, and this could result in an unacceptable increase resulting 
from the additional clinical load created by the development. It could also result in 
the Practice needing to close their list to new Patients, if the surgery were not able 
to recruit a sustainable workforce and this would affect the whole population of 
Lingfield, not just these patients. So, in short, more NHS staff would be required. 
 

115. There are no other surgeries within the locality that could provide future care, so an 
extension to the surgery would need to be considered, which could result in the 
reduction of onsite parking. However, patients and staff would have access to the 
local public car park a short distance away. 
 

116. The application would be made more viable, however, if the practice was upgraded 
to provide more facilities. As such, the NHS estimate the costs involved to upgrade 
the practice (not including the cost of additional staff) would amount to £195,891.  A 
financial contribution to upgrade the Lingfield surgery of this amount has been 
agreed by the applicants to be included in a Section 106.  With respect to NHS 
healthcare provision, the application would therefore be acceptable and comply with 
CSP11 of the Tandridge District Core Strategy 2008. 

 

Affordable Housing 

 

117. The affordable housing provision will need to be set in the context of national and 
local planning guidance. Policy CSP4 of the Core Strategy states, the Council will 
require that a proportion of new dwellings built in the District will be affordable, to be 
available to people on lower incomes, unable to afford housing at the prevailing 
market price or who need to live within the District. 
 

118. Chapter 5 of the NPPF 2021 requires local authorities to identify affordable housing 
need and set policies for meeting this need. Paragraph 57 states: “Where up-to-date 
policies have set out the contributions expected from development planning 
applications that comply with them should be assumed to be viable. It is up to the 
applicant to demonstrate whether particular circumstances justify the need for a 
viability assessment at the application stage. The weight to be given to a viability 
assessment is a matter for the decision maker, having regard to all the 
circumstances in the case, including whether the plan and the viability evidence 
underpinning it is up to date, and any change in site circumstances since the plan 
was brought into force. All viability assessments, including any undertaken at the 
plan-making stage, should reflect the recommended approach in national planning 
guidance, including standardised inputs, and should be made publicly available.” 
 

119. The applicant is proposing a development of 152 units with communal facilities and 
consulting rooms as part of a proposed integrated retirement community.  Where 
residential dwellings are capable of being independent dwellings, they can he 
regarded as dwellings even where that is an element of care provided.  Policy CSP4 
does not differentiate between Use Classes and therefore applies to this application. 
 

120. The applicant has submitted a viability appraisal that supports their assertion that 
the scheme cannot viably support an onsite affordable housing contribution.  This 
appraisal has been robustly tested by an independent viability consultant on behalf 
of the Council and has concluded that an off-site contribution could be sought. The 
applicant has offered a commuted sum of £500k in lieu of onsite affordable housing 

Page 45



 

32 
 

which would be used to subsidise the Council’s own house building programme.  It 
is the Council’s understanding that any higher commuted sum would render the 
scheme unviable which would in turn jeopardise the future of the charity. 
 

121. The off-site contribution is considered to be a good offer that would make a notable 
contribution to affordable housing within the District. This is considered to exceed 
the Policy expectations of the Development Plan, and this is a material consideration 
in favour of the application. Therefore, the application would be acceptable in regard 
to affordable housing provision and complies with policy CSP4 of the Tandridge 
District Core Strategy. 

 

Socio-Economic Matters 

 

122. The NPPF 2021 states that sustainability includes both social and economic 
objectives and seeks to build a strong and competitive economy. It also states that 
significant weight should be placed on the need to support economic growth and 
productivity, taking into account both local business needs and wider opportunities 
for development. In this context, the financial element of the development and job 
creation and safeguarding is recognised as a benefit that should be afforded weight. 
 

123. The economic benefits set out within the submitted Planning Statement suggest 119 
on-site jobs would be created annually during three years of construction with 202 
net additional on-site jobs during the operation of the scheme. A total of 397 
equivalent full time on-site jobs would be retained on the YE estate.  
 

124. The construction of the scheme will create social value through training, new skills, 
local procurement arrangements and the reduction of unemployment. The 
operational stage of the Proposed Development is also estimated to deliver social 
value and environmental benefits, principally through education and healthcare 
services provided by Audley Group and YE and also the permanent employment 
opportunities created. 
 

125. Accordingly, the proposed development is considered to be both socially and 
economically sustainable and significant weight is given to this as a VSC for 
permitting the development. 

 

Locational Sustainability 

 

126. The NPPF 2021 states that local planning authorities should support a pattern of 
development which, where reasonable to do so, facilitates the use of sustainable 
modes of transport, and that developments should be located where practical to give 
priority to pedestrian and cycle movements, and have access to high quality public 
transport facilities. The NPPF does, however, recognise that opportunities to 
maximise sustainable transport solutions will vary from urban to rural areas. Policy 
CSP1 of the Tandridge District Core Strategy (2008) states that in order to promote 
sustainable patterns of travel, and in order to make the best use of previously 
developed land, development will take place within the existing built-up areas of the 
District and be located where there is a choice of mode of transport available and 
where the distance to travel to services is minimised. 

 

127. Policy CSP1 seeks to promote sustainable patterns of travel and make best use of 
previously developed land, by directing development towards the existing built-up 
areas of the District, our Category 1 settlements. Development appropriate to the 
needs of rural communities may be permitted in our Category 2 settlements. The 

Page 46



 

33 
 

latter comprises those settlements defined as Larger Rural Settlements and those 
washed over by the Green Belt but that have a defined boundary. 
 

128. The site is located in the southern part of the district about 850m to the southeast of 
the edge of the settlement boundary of Lingfield, the nearest rural settlement with a 
good range of services. Lingfield is categorised as a Larger Rural Settlement and a 
Category 2 Settlement. Within Tandridge District Council’s (TDC) emerging 
Tandridge Local Plan (hereafter referred to as “Local Plan 2033”) it is identified as 
a Semi-Rural Service Settlement, falling within Tier 2, which is identified as being 
able to demonstrate good levels of service provision and access to facilities (shops, 
primary education, community facilities and access to local health care).  However, 
in spatial terms this site is isolated and set within the countryside, well separated 
from the built-up area.  
 

129. The St Piers Estate covers a substantial area, containing a number of pockets of 
previously developed land which contain a number of buildings. Footpaths 381 (to 
the north of the estate boundary) and 389 (to the west of the boundary) link the site 
to the urban settlement of Lingfield. Nevertheless, the site is still isolated, relying 
heavily on the need for motor vehicles.  
 

130. The spatial strategy, within the Local Plan 2023, directs development towards both 
TDC’s Tier 1 and Tier 2 Settlements. As such the Council have proposed the 
allocation of land within or abutting Lingfield’s settlement boundaries. As set out 
earlier, the site is located approximately 850 metres from the settlement boundary 
of Lingfield (not to the amenities within it) and for this reason, it would not be an 
ideal location in sustainable transport terms for new residential use, as it is not easily 
accessible by modes of transport other than the private car. Furthermore, it is not 
located within a reasonable walking distance from key services and facilities such 
as jobs, shops, health and leisure facilities. The nearest bus stops are approximately 
500m to the southwest on Racecourse Road, however bus services are not very 
frequent during the week, with no services on Sundays, there is also no safe 
crossing point across Racecourse Road to access the bus stop. Lingfield Railway 
Station is located approximately 1 km to the southwest of the site via public footpath 
381, however this footpath currently takes the form of an 'unmade' track and can 
only be used during drier months and only during daylight as there is no lighting and 
requires users to negotiate kissing gates and footbridges. Residents of the proposed 
residential use would therefore be dependent on the private car for access to normal 
day to day services and facilities, hence the development would be contrary to the 
sustainable transport objectives of the NPPF and policy CS1 of the Core Strategy. 
 

131. However, in accordance with the NPPF it is acknowledged that there are three 
dimensions to sustainable development - economic, social and environmental. The 
merits of this application will need to be weighed against these factors and comprise 
the following; 

 

• Social – Specialist school/young adult care and training provision for people 
suffering from epilepsy and autism across south east England, elderly care 
(community facility), offsite affordable housing contribution.   

 

• Economic - Retention of 397 (full time equivalent) jobs at Young Epilepsy, 
creation of further temporary jobs in construction and 119 permanent jobs in the 
care facility. 

 

Page 47



 

34 
 

• Environmental - Landscape improvements with the demolition of derelict 
buildings and reinstatement to open Green Belt and rewilding, biodiversity 
enhancements across the site and fabric first energy efficiency. 

 

132. The Transport Assessment sets out that the proposed residential care facility has a 
C2 use (people in need of care) and therefore the needs of residents are not the 
same as a market housing development in terms of accessing jobs and schools. 
The applicant is proposing to provide some on site facilities such as a small shop, 
restaurant/bar, library, fitness studio, hairdresser, GP visits and will therefore cater 
for some day-to-day requirements. It is understood that the shop will be available 
for members of the public as well as those living and working on the site. 
 

133. On balance, although the development is not wholly locationally sustainable, overall 
the balance of social, economic and environmental considerations are considered 
to outweigh any sustainability disbenefits and this is a material consideration in the 
determination of this application.   

 

Highway Safety and Parking 

 

134. The NPPF 2021 states that local planning authorities should support a pattern of 
development which, where reasonable to do so, facilitates the use of sustainable 
modes of transport, and that developments should be located where practical to give 
priority to pedestrian and cycle movements, and have access to high quality public 
transport facilities. The NPPF does, however, recognise that opportunities to 
maximise sustainable transport solutions will vary from urban to rural areas. 
 

135. CS Policy CSP1 states that in order to promote sustainable patterns of travel, and 
in order to make the best use of previously developed land, development will take 
place within the existing built-up areas of the District and be located where there is 
a choice of mode of transport available and where the distance to travel to services 
is minimised. CS Policy CSP12 advises that new development proposals should 
have regard to adopted highway design standards and vehicle/other parking 
standards. Criterion 3 of Policy DP7 of the Local Plan also requires new 
development to have regard to adopted parking standards and Policy DP5 seeks to 
ensure that development does not impact highway safety. 
 

136. The application is supported by a Transport Assessment and a Transport Response 
Note.  The proposal has been referred to the Surrey County Council Highways 
(CHA) team which has considered highways and transport issues. Key details of the 
response are referred to throughout the following assessment. 
 
Access and Layout 
 

137. The Transport Assessment indicates that vehicular access and egress would be 
maintained from St Piers Lane, and these would appear to be acceptable for 
vehicular movements. In addition, it is noted that cycle and refuse storage would be 
provided along the access roads for accessibility with regard to collections. The CHA 
team have requested a condition to alter the accesses and visibility splays in 
accordance with the information submitted as part of the planning application.  
 

138. The comments set out that St. Piers Lane, a narrow rural lane which has limited 
street lighting, has no footways on either side for most of its length and is subject to 
a 40-mph speed limit, although this reduces to 20 mph where it passes through the 
Young Epilepsy campus. With this in mind, walking, cycling and the use of public 

Page 48



 

35 
 

transport are not currently safe or practical means of travel to/from the site. For these 
reasons, officers consider the site location to be in an unsustainable location for a 
residential development, in terms of transport and accessibility. 
 

139. However, if the  District Council is minded to grant permission on the above 
application, the CHA would request that an appropriate agreement be secured 
before the grant of permission to secure a contribution of £12,300 (£6.150 per TP) 
for the monitoring of the Workplace Travel Plan and the Residential Care 
Community Framework Travel Plan as well as conditions to ensure highway safety 
on the site both during construction and once the buildings are occupied. The 
conditions would include a construction management plan, details of rubbish 
collection, setting out and retention of appropriate visibility splays and the provision 
of parking bays and cycle storage prior to the occupation of the site.  
 
Servicing 
 

140. The CHA team has considered servicing. It notes that all servicing deliveries and 
refuse collection) will take place within the site and swept path analysis has been 
provided demonstrating that a refuse and delivery vehicle can turn within the site 
and exit access points in a forward gear. Emergency vehicles can also access the 
site in forward gear and negotiate the internal access roads and exit the site in 
forward gear via all accesses. Therefore, the servicing arrangements are considered 
acceptable. 
 

141. The refuse collection for such facility is undertaken by private companies. The plans 
currently show space for 7 x 1,100 litres refuse, 7 x 1,100 recycling waste. These 
are located to the north and south of St Piers Lane adjacent to the access roads to 
the rear of the buildings. These facilities are insufficient to service the development 
proposal. However, there is scope to provide further refuse facilities on the site, and 
this could be dealt with by condition.  
 
Highway Safety 
 

142. The speed limit for St Piers Lane as it traverses through the Young Epilepsy site is 
20 mph. This speed is sufficient to retain highway safety in the event of a favourable 
decision although it is also noted that CHA have suggested a condition relating to 
the modification of vehicular accesses and visibility splays in accordance with the 
information provided.   
 
Parking provision 
 

143. It is proposed to provide 0.9 non-allocated spaces on site for residents, staff and 
visitors and this is considered sufficient by CHA. A condition could be imposed to 
ensure the parking is provided prior to the occupation of the site should the 
application be granted.  
 
Cycle parking provision 
 

144. The provision and storage of cycles appears to be acceptable, suitably secure and 
undercover. Officers consider that there is sufficient provision for cycle parking 
although details of its design would be required. 
 
 
 
 

Page 49



 

36 
 

Construction phase 
 

145. In the event of a favourable decision, CHA has also requested a detailed 
Construction Transport Management Plan (CTMP) in order to ensure the safe 
access and egress of construction vehicles during the development. 

 

Highway Safety and Parking Conclusion 

 

146. In summary, noting the specialist advice received from CHA, no objection is raised 
the proposal on the grounds of highway safety or parking provision. 

 

Character and Appearance 

 

147. The NPPF states that the creation of high quality, beautiful and sustainable buildings 
and places is fundamental to what the planning and development process should 
achieve. Good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, creates better 
places in which to live and work and helps make development acceptable to 
communities. It goes on to state that planning decisions should ensure that 
developments will function well, add to the overall quality of the area, be sympathetic 
to local character and history (whilst not discouraging innovation) and establish a 
strong sense of place.  It also states that development that is not well designed 
should be refused. 
 

148. Policy CSP18 of the Core Strategy requires that new development should be of a 
high standard of design that must reflect and respect the character, setting and local 
context, including those features that contribute to local distinctiveness. 
Development must also have regard to the topography of the site, important trees 
or groups of trees and other important features that need to be retained. 
 

149. Policy DP7 of the Local Plan Part 2: Detailed Policies requires development to, inter 
alia, respect and contribute to the distinctive character, appearance and amenity of 
the area in which it is located, have a complementary building design and not result 
in overdevelopment or unacceptable intensification by reason of scale, form, bulk, 
height, spacing, density and design. 
 

150. Policy CSP21 of the Tandridge District Core Strategy 2008 advises that the 
character and distinctiveness of the District’s landscapes and countryside will be 
protected for their own sake and that new development will be required to conserve 
and enhance landscape character. 
 

151. Paragraph 40 of the National Design Guide stipulates that “well designed new 
development responds positively to the features of site itself and the surrounding 
context beyond the site boundary.” Paragraph 49 also states that the “identity or 
character of a place comes from the way buildings, streets, spaces, landscape and 
infrastructure combine together and how people experience them. Furthermore, 
paragraph 51 advises that local identity is made up of typical characteristics such 
as the pattern of housing, and special feature that are distinct from their 
surroundings. Paragraph 52 articulates that this includes considering the 
composition of street scenes, individual buildings and their elements and the height, 
scale, massing and relationships between buildings. 
 
 
 
 

Page 50



 

37 
 

Access and Layout 
 

152. The proposed development site area is located to the west of the existing complex, 
with St Piers Lane cutting through it in an east-west direction. Access to the 
development proposals would be off St Piers Lane to the north and south. Some of 
the access roads and hardstanding will be utilised from the existing development, 
but further hardstanding would also need to be created to accommodate vehicular 
traffic and parking requirements.  
 

153. The focus of activity would be directed towards Block ‘M’ (situated to the north of St 
Piers Lane) which is a three-storey building housing a number of key functions to 
include the following: 
 

154. 2 x two bed flats, fitness studio, 2 x treatment rooms, swimming room, sauna, steam 
room, changing rooms, 3 x offices, staff room, plant, laundry, kitchen, chef’s office, 
bar bistro, restaurant, private dining room. The two floors above comprise a further 
16 x two bed apartments.  
 

155. To the west of Block ‘M’ is block ‘A’, another three-storey building containing 45 one- 
and two-bedroom units. To the south of St Piers Lanes are four further three storey 
buildings (Blocks B, D, E and F) each containing 18 two-bedroom apartments. 
Finally, scattered around the site on both sides of St Piers Lane would be 17 two 
storey semi-detached and terraced two bedroomed properties.  
 

156. At present the development site presents itself as a large open area which provides 
relief between the existing buildings previously in use as part of Young Epilepsy. It 
is acknowledged that the development proposal includes the demolition of 42 
buildings across the entire school site. 
 

157. Vehicular access to the development proposal would be legible and easily 
accessible from St Piers Lane. The car parks would be reasonably proportioned, 
and the cycle parking would also be accessible.  
 

158. The original proposal was to infill the open area resulting in the loss of the open 
space on this part of the site. It would create a continuous ribbon of development 
along St Piers Lane, particularly to the south. This open green space has a width of 
200 metres (along St Piers Lane) and a depth of 150 metres. Whilst it is 
acknowledged that the site is within the ownership of Young Epilepsy, and pockets 
within the site are considered previously developed land, such a large-scale 
intensification of use of this land within the Green Belt should be carefully 
considered in order to manage the character and appearance of development in this 
location and its visual impact on the surrounding countryside.  
 
Massing, scale, form, and height 
 

159. The land within the site gently slopes downwards from north to south. The site is 
clearly viewed from the west along St Piers Lane, although it is acknowledged that 
there is some screening from mature landscaping on either side of the lane. 
Landscaping views provided as part of the submitted documentation for the 
application show that, at present, the buildings on the site of Young Epilepsy are 
largely obscured by trees around the western perimeter. However, the existing 
buildings currently range from single storey flat roofed structures to two storey 
buildings with steeply pitched roofs including dormers within them. Furthermore, it 
is noted that the existing buildings are densely positioned in close proximity to the 
trees along the north and south perimeters. 

Page 51



 

38 
 

 
160. The development proposal comprises varied structures mainly comprising 

community and residential facilities. They would include 5 three storey buildings with 
pitched roofs with an overall height in excess of 14 metres, and 7 two storey 
buildings with pitched roofs with an overall height in excess of 9 metres. The 
development would also include other smaller buildings for plant and cycle/refuse 
storage as well as additional access roads and car parking areas. These buildings 
would be sited closer to St Piers Lane than the obsolete ones, and their siting, in 
addition to their increase in height and bulk, would result in an intensification of use 
of the site and subsequent loss of green space as well as a more prominent 
urbanising form due to its size, height, bulk, massing and siting along the rural lane. 
 

161. The buildings of the greatest height (3 storeys) and scale (namely Blocks A, B, D, 
E, F and M) have been concentrated to the west of the Young Epilepsy site, with A 
and M to the north of the site. Blocks B to F have been situated largely to the south 
of St Piers Lane. A more modest block of open green space has been retained to 
the north of the Audley site adjacent to the Young Epilepsy site and further amenity 
space has been retained around the site (to the north and south of St Piers Lane) in 
more modest portions. The garden space appears to be communal throughout, 
although some private amenity space can be provided by the use of defensive 
planting. The applicant has relied on the trees and Ancient Woodland around the 
perimeter of the site to act as a screen from the surrounding open countryside and 
Green Belt, although it should be noted that as trees can be seen as transient, they 
should not solely be relied upon as a screen. Notwithstanding this, whilst the long-
term retention of trees cannot be guaranteed, even when statutorily protected, it is 
noted that there is extensive tree coverage within the locality and as such it is likely 
that, even if some trees were required to be removed on health grounds, a 
substantial element of screening would remain in the long-term.  
 

162. The trees surrounding the site do provide some level of screening in views from the 
west looking into the site onto the existing buildings. A large proportion of the 
proposed development would be three storeys in height with pitched roofs, although 
amended plans have reduced the bulk and massing of the buildings considerably in 
addition to reducing the overall height by 2 metres. This would lessen the 
prominence of the development proposal from public vantage points although there 
would still be some impact on the sensitive rural character of the locality and the 
openness of the Green Belt.  
 

163. With regard to the massing, scale, form and height, the proposal would present as 
a dominant development although the breaks between buildings in terms of their 
height, scale, bulk and massing and volume help to reduce the harm resulting in the 
intensification of use in the context of the surrounding area.  
 
Young Epilepsy 
 

164. The majority of works for Young Epilepsy would comprise changes of use and 
revitalising of existing buildings. The only extensions resulting in an increase in bulk 
and massing relate to the increase in size of two wings of the further education 
collage to the east of the Grade II listed buildings, and would comprise the following: 

165. Multi skills teaching space, Dining area, Workshop, 2 x stores, 3 x classrooms, 2 x 
quiet rooms, Time out room, Staff room, WCs.  
 

166. The extensions would sit among existing buildings which would screen them to a 
degree from public vantage points. The extensions would be of a modest size and 
would be of contemporary design and single storey in height with lean to roofs. As 

Page 52



 

39 
 

such they would be relatively unobtrusive and would relate well to the site as a 
whole.  
 
Landscape Setting 
 

167. The Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment supplied with the application 
documents sets out the importance of the Low Weald Farmland, within which the 
site lies. The Surrey Landscape Character Assessment 2015 sets out the following 
information: 

 

The characteristics of the locality gently undulating predominantly farmland 
with larger scale fields. There is a well-developed hedgerow network and 
mature trees which are often found within fields rather than within hedges. 
Isolated farmsteads can be found in this area, and sporadic groups of rural 
dwellings are scattered around the area. It is noted that there is an historic 
landscape pattern associated with farming and the grazing of animals. Long 
distance views are possible in the locality. 

 

Past sensitive issues raised relating to this area  

 

• In previous years there has been increased car and rail commuter activity  

• There has been increased pressure on rural lanes from vehicular use 

 

Future pressures raised relating to this area 

 

• Pressure for increase in and around smaller settlements including re-
development of farmsteads and agricultural buildings  

• Increased traffic on rural roads leading to urbanisation through kerbing, lighting 
and signage 

 

Landscape Strategy 

 

• Conserve the peaceful unsettled character promoting traditional management of 
woodlands and hedgerows. 

 

Built development 

 

• Conserve unsettled landscape 

• Conserve the pattern of the character of settlements, resisting spread and 
coalescence. 

• Ensure new development respects existing rural characteristics and conserves 
distinctive open areas, greens and commons. 

• Ensure new development respects local characteristics, through detailing use of 
local pattern and building materials 

• New transport integrated into landscape 

• New development should not impact on dark skies within sparsely settled areas 

• Lighting to respect rural location and biodiversity. 

• Appropriate materials surfacing and signage to be used. 
 

168. The site was originally identified as a farmstead comprising the three listed buildings 
centrally located in the site. It was developed as a school and the buildings have 
subsequently been increased in number through the years. The existing landscape 
that forms part of the Audley site includes a large open green space with a modest 

Page 53



 

40 
 

children’s play area to the north of St Piers Lane. The buildings (comprising single 
and two storey structures with flat and pitched roofs are largely located around the 
perimeter of the site to allow for a generous green space more centrally in the site. 
The bulk, massing and height of the existing buildings are screened somewhat by 
the proximity of the mature trees that are in close proximity of the built forms here. 

 

169. The proposed development seeks to demolish some 42 buildings from all around 
the Young Epilepsy site. This would improve the openness of the countryside on the 
eastern side of the Young Epilepsy site. Notwithstanding this, the additional volume 
of buildings on the western side of the site would result in the loss of the openness 
of the countryside as they would be located closer to St Piers Lane resulting in the 
loss of the existing open green space.  
 

170. Officers are of the view that the landscape vision would need to be conditioned in 
order to provide an appropriate amenity area that would sit well within the sensitive 
Green Belt location. It is considered that the proposal has the potential to provide a 
landscape led scheme that would prioritise the openness of the Green Belt and 
would therefore comply with the local Plan policies. 

 
Architecture 

 

171. The existing buildings on the site are varied in age, style and materials. The 
proposed development is modern in style. Architecturally the materials for the 
buildings are acceptable. However, there is concern relating to the design of the 
new two storey buildings and in particular the tile hanging on them. Tile hanging was 
originally constructed from the top of the first floor to the top of the head of the 
ground floor windows on the two storey dwellings, and the materials would be more 
appropriate if they followed this traditional form. Tiles should be in keeping with the 
Surrey vernacular style. The palette of materials includes clay tile and red brick with 
varying tones which is reflective of local vernacular. The contrasting modern and 
robust materials such as the black standing seam roof are supported. Officers note 
that attention has been paid to include window reveals and detailing which allows 
for some shadow which is positive, although this does not overcome the concerns 
about the wider size, bulk and massing issues identified earlier. 
 
Overall Assessment   

 

172. Overall, it is considered that the proposed development would make a positive 
contribution to the open rural character due to its siting, design, height, bulk.   For 
the above reasons, the proposal would be in accordance with Policy DP7 of the 
Tandridge Local Plan: Part 2 – Detailed Policies and Policy CSP18 of the Core 
Strategy. 

 
Impact on Heritage Assets 

 

173. Sections 16 and 66(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) 
Act 1990 (as amended) place a general duty on the Council with respect to listed 
buildings in exercising its planning functions. This states that “In considering 
whether to grant listed building consent for any works the local planning authority 
shall have special regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting 
or any features of special architectural or historic interest which it possesses.” 
Chapter 16 of the NPPF 2021 focuses on the topic of conserving and enhancing the 
historic environment. Paragraph 193 states that ‘When considering the impact of a 
proposed development on the significance of a designated heritage asset, great 

Page 54



 

41 
 

weight should be given to the asset’s conservation. The more important the asset, 
the greater the weight should be’. It is necessary to assess the potential harm of the 
proposal. With regard to harm paragraph 134 of the NPPF 2021 states: ‘As heritage 
assets are irreplaceable, any harm or loss should require clear and convincing 
justification.’ 
 

174. With regard to heritage assets, Local Plan Part 2: Detailed Policies Policy DP20 
indicates that there will be a presumption in favour of development proposals which 
seek to protect, preserve and wherever possible enhance the historic interest, 
cultural value, architectural character, visual appearance and setting of the District’s 
heritage assets and historic environment. However, this is only where the public 
benefits of a proposal significantly outweigh the harm to, or loss of a designated 
heritage asset or its setting, will exceptionally planning consent be granted. Where 
a proposal is likely to result in substantial harm to, or loss of, a designated heritage 
asset of the highest significance, granting of permission or consent will be wholly 
exceptional. In order for the LPA to support planning proposals works should be 
sympathetic to heritage assets and their setting ensuring quality design and layout 
and materials. 
 

175. Paragraph 199 of the NPPF 2021 sets out that great weight should be given to the 
asset’s conservation when considering the impact of the development proposal on 
the significance of a designated heritage asset. Furthermore, paragraph 202 
discusses the need to weigh the potential harm of a listed building against the public 
benefits of the proposal including, where appropriate, its optimum viable use when 
it is considered that it would lead to less than substantial harm to the significance of 
a designated heritage asset.  
 

176. There are three Grade II listed buildings on the site as described in detail in 
paragraph 11 to 13 above. 
 

177. The applicant has provided two heritage statements, one for the site as a whole and 
another for the listed buildings affected by the scheme.  
 

178. St Piers was originally a farmstead on the edge of common land and the most 
important remaining historic buildings from this are the three Grade II listed 
farmstead buildings. The oldest is the former farmhouse (listed as Lingfield Hospital 
School). It was originally constructed in the mid-16th century, although the eastern 
end of the building was rebuilt as a cross wing in the early 17th century and an in-
line bay was also added at the west end at the end of the 17th century.  
 

179. The barn is listed as eighteenth century and the granary is late eighteenth century. 
Both structures are timber framed. Historically, the granary would have had a cart 
shed underneath with the first floor used to store grain. Internally the original 
partition survives between the two cart shed bays as do all the original floor joists. 
The ground floor height is important in understanding the function of the granary 
and, because of this, it is considered an important survival of the farmstead. 
 

180. The significance of the buildings is assessed as a former farmstead which 
developed on the edge of common land from the 16th to 18th centuries and later 
formed part of the school site. Key aspects include the use of materials, plan form, 
scale and surviving historic fabric.  
 

181. The immediate setting of the building around a yard contributes to understanding 
their historic interest as former farmstead buildings although the existing car park 
detracts from this. The approach to the buildings along St Piers Lane also 

Page 55



 

42 
 

contributes to their setting as the road widens and the view opens up once the site 
of the former common land is reached. 
 

182. In addition to the farmstead buildings themselves, the site forms part of the wider 
‘Lingfield Colony’ site which later developed into a school for children with epilepsy. 
A number of the buildings proposed for demolition are those which formed an early 
part of the site and form part of its historic interest. The heritage statement argues 
that as they do not meet the very limited criteria set out on the Buildings of Character 
List (2013) they should not be considered non-designated heritage assets. Officers 
consider this is an acceptable standpoint. 
 

183. Officers consider that the School Buildings, Administrative Block Buildings, Cory, 
The Chapel and Garden and Tinling Cottages all have clear architectural interest in 
their form and elevational appearance, and they all have some historic interest 
forming part of the Lingfield Colony site. With this in mind the buildings would be 
sufficient to meet the requirements set out on the Buildings of Character list, 
although their significance would be only of low value due to their degree of 
alteration. Furthermore, Officers consider that 1 and 2 Farm Cottages should be 
considered worthy of inclusion on the basis of their good quality brickwork and 
history as part of the farm site and it is noted that the writer of the previous 
assessment suggested they should be retained. For this reason, 1 and 2 Farm 
Cottages are considered non-designated heritage assets under paragraph 203 of 
the NPPF 2021. 
 

184. This scheme proposes the demolition of a number of non-designated heritage 
assets. However, the loss of these buildings needs to be weighed against the public 
benefit to retain the YE school as well as the continued use of the statutory listed 
buildings.  
 

185. Overall, officers consider that as the non-designated heritage assets are only of low 
significance, their loss would be outweighed by the benefits of scheme in line with 
paragraph 203 of the NPPF 2021. Furthermore, although the loss of 1 and 2 Farm 
Cottages would be unfortunate as they are of reasonably good architectural 
character, their demolition would not constitute sufficient grounds to refuse the 
application in itself.   Therefore, in line with paragraph 205 of the NPPF 2021, these 
buildings should be recorded and a suitable condition to cover this should be added 
to the decision notice in the event of a favourable decision. 
 

186. In addition to weighing the balance of the demolition of the buildings on the site, the 
development proposal would include a several new benefits including the following: 

 

• Repairs to the Granary, link building and floor plan changes 

• Loss of the maintenance building  

• Loss of hard standing surrounding the listed buildings  

• Re-design of the car park to site it further away from the listed buildings 

• Provision of a comprehensive landscaping scheme that would substantially 
improve the setting to the listed buildings 

 

187. There is a maintenance building to the west of the listed buildings, finished in 
unsympathetic materials and separated from the heritage buildings by a large, 
tarmacked area and car park. Officers consider that the demolition of this building 
and its replacement with the proposed landscaping scheme would result in a public 
benefit to the heritage assets by enhancing their setting. This part of the scheme is 
well thought out in general however, the stainless-steel bollards shown as part of it 

Page 56



 

43 
 

would be considered an alien form out of character with the traditional buildings. 
However, details of the landscaping can be submitted as part of a condition in the 
event of a favourable decision.  
 

188. Officers are of the view that the alterations would result in an improvement in the 
cluster of heritage buildings on the site creating a more tradition backdrop in which 
to view the buildings without the clutter of modern vehicles on a tarmacked 
hardstanding.  
 

189. The alterations to the link building in addition to the proposed new openings would 
be an improvement on the existing structure. Details of materials have also been 
applied and, as such, no further conditions will be required on this count. 
Furthermore, the floor plan changes to this building would not result in any harm to 
the listed buildings.  
 

190. The proposals for the granary are low key due to the difficulty of finding a new use 
for the building without fundamentally changing its character. At present, the extent 
of repairs to the structure are unknown because the first floor is inaccessible due to 
the staircase. In the event of a favourable decision, a condition would be required 
to ensure the extent of repairs is agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority 
to ensure they do not harm the special interest of the listed building.  
 

191. Taking the above listed building works into consideration, the new build aspect of 
the full scheme would largely be concentrated to the west of the site. The listed 
buildings are located more centrally on the site and, as such, would be located a 
significant distance from the proposed residential extra care facility. 
 

192. In summary, officers have assessed the proposal in accordance with paragraphs 
195, 199 and 203 of the NPPF 2021. It is considered that there will be a low level of 
harm from the loss of undesignated heritage assets under paragraph 203 of the 
NPPF 2021.  Any heritage harm of the proposed development would be outweighed 
by the benefits to the setting of the Grade II Lingfield Hospital School, Barn and 
Granary and, for this reason, there would be no historic built environment reasons 
to refuse the application. 
 

193. Officers are of the opinion that the potential loss of the YE school and the loss of the 
non-designated heritage assets would result in a negative impact with regard to the 
planning balance. However, the alterations relating to the loss of tarmac 
hardstanding, the incorporation of natural landscaping would result in an 
improvement in the cluster of heritage buildings on the site, creating a more 
traditional backdrop in which to view the buildings without the clutter of modern 
vehicles on an unsympathetic modern surface. The repairs to the listed buildings 
would also result in a positive impact.  
 

194. Overall, it is considered that the application demonstrates less than substantial harm 
to the significance of designated heritage assets.  There is a public benefit arising 
from funding to conserve the designated heritage assets and retain them in an 
optimum viable use which is a material planning consideration weighing in favour of 
a grant of planning permission and Listed Building Consent.  Officers recommend 
that Listed Building Consent should be granted subject to conditions relating to the 
recording of 1 and 2 Farm Cottages prior to their demolition and details relating to 
the extent of repairs to the Granary. 
 
 
 

Page 57



 

44 
 

Archaeology 

 

195. In line with the requirements of the NPPF paragraph 194, and Local Plan Part 2: 
Detailed Policies Policy DP20, for developments above 0.4ha, the applicant has 
considered the archaeological implications of the proposed development and has 
submitted an Archaeological Desk-Based Assessment dated June 2022, as 
produced by their archaeological consultants Savills. 
 

196. The Assessment considers the proposed development site to have a generally low 
archaeological potential for all periods, however, little archaeological investigation 
has taken place within this large site by which the potential might be better 
understood. Recent archaeological work at sites on similar Wealden Clay geology 
have produced previously unexpected results for settlement and activity from the 
Iron Age, Roman and medieval periods. For this reason, it is considered that the 
potential of the site may be higher than assessed and remains to be proven. 
 

197. In order to clarify the presence or absence of any Heritage Assets of archaeological 
significance, further archaeological work is required here, comprising the excavation 
of a number of trial trenches within the site.  
 

198. In terms of Young Epilepsy, the three proposed car park areas that adjoin the south 
side of St Piers Lane should be targeted. 
 

199. However, evaluation within the Audley phases should target all areas of the 
proposed development that lay outside the footprint of the existing buildings. The 
evaluation should target but not necessarily be limited to, the new buildings, car 
parks, access roads, attenuation and landscaping. 
 

200. The number of buildings that are to be demolished within this phase and the 
associated potential impacts that presents to any Heritage Assets of archaeological 
significance that may be present from construction traffic and demolition 
groundworks, dictates that the evaluation should be carried out prior to any 
demolition taking place. 
 

201. The NPPF 2021 and development plan policy encourage pre-commencement 
conditions in this case as they provide the opportunity to identify archaeological 
assets at an early stage. In the event of a find of national significance there then 
exists the opportunity to influence the design and logistics of the development to 
allow their preservation in situ. Pre-determination evaluation will help to provide the 
applicant with a clearer understanding of the potential costs and programme 
implications should further mitigation measures be required. It would also help to 
prevent the accidental destruction of any artefacts. 
 

202. The pre-commencement condition shall secure the implementation of a programme 
of archaeological work to be conducted in accordance with a written scheme of 
investigation. 
 
Residential Amenity 

 

203. Policy CSP18 of the Core Strategy advises that development must not significantly 
harm the amenities of the occupiers of neighbouring properties by reason of 
overlooking, overshadowing, visual intrusion, noise, traffic and any adverse effect. 
Criterions 6-9 of Policy DP7 of the Local Plan Part 2: Detailed Policies seek also to 

Page 58



 

45 
 

safeguard amenity, including minimum privacy distances that will be applied to new 
development proposals. 
 

204. The above policies reflect the guidance at paragraph 130 of the NPPF 2021, which 
seeks amongst other things to create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible 
and which promote health and well-being, with a high standard of amenity for 
existing and future users of development. 
 

205. Given the separation of the site from adjoining residential buildings it is not 
considered that there would be an undue harmful impact with respect to daylight, 
sunlight, privacy or outlook. 
 

206. Noise and disturbance are also a material consideration and officers have also 
consulted TDC’s Environmental Health Team. Since there are no objections to the 
development proposal it is seen to be acceptable in this regard. 
 
Flood Risk 
 

207. One of the twelve land-use planning principles contained in the NPPF 2021 and to 
underpin plan-making and decision-taking relates to taking full account of flood risk. 
Paragraph 159 of the NPPF advises that; ‘Inappropriate development in areas at 
risk of flooding should be avoided by directing development away from areas at 
highest risk, but where development is necessary, making it safe without increasing 
flood risk elsewhere’. 
 

208. Policy DP21 of the Tandridge District Local Plan Part 2: Detailed Policies advises 
that proposals should seek to secure opportunities to reduce both the cause and 
impact of flooding. Development proposals within Flood Risk Zones 2 and 3 or on 
sites of 1 hectare or greater in zone 1 will only be permitted where, inter alia, the 
sequential test and, where appropriate, exception tests of the NPPF 2021 have been 
applied and passed and that it is demonstrated through a Flood Risk Assessment 
(FRA) that the proposal would, where practicable, reduce flood risk both to and from 
the development or at least be risk neutral. The impact of climate change on the 
global environment is recognised and flooding from surface water runoff is one of 
the main consequences. The planning system is expected to play a critical role in 
combating the effects of climate change by pursuing sustainable development and 
use of Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems. 
 

209. The application is accompanied by a Drainage Strategy (referenced 
T212432DR001 received on 31.08.2022 and dated 18.07.2022) and a Flood Risk 
Report (referenced T21 2432 FRA 1.2) received on 29.09.2022 and dated 
30.05.2022). Both reports were prepared by Tier Consult Ltd. 
 

210. The Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) has reviewed the submitted Drainage 
Strategy and FRA. The LLFA was not satisfied that the proposed drainage scheme 
met the necessary requirements with regard to surface water drainage however, 
they requested a suitably worded pre-commencement condition for the submission 
of drainage details which must satisfy the SuDS Hierarchy and be compliant with 
the national Non-Statutory Technical Standards for SuDS, NPPF and Ministerial 
Statement on SuDS. 
 

211. It is noted that the Environment Agency was also consulted regarding the application 
although no comments were received. 

 

 

Page 59



 

46 
 

Trees 
 

212. Policy CSP18 of the Core Strategy required that development must have regard to 
the topography of the site, important trees and groups of trees and other important 
features that need to be retained. Criterion 13 of the Local Plan Part 2: Detailed 
Policies Policy DP7 required that where trees are present on a proposed 
development site, a landscaping scheme should be submitted alongside the 
planning application which makes the provision for retention of existing trees that 
are important by virtue of their significance within the local landscape. 
 

213. The Tandridge Trees and Soft landscaping SPD (2017) outlines the importance of 
landscaping which applies to urban and rural areas and advises that it is ‘essential 
that the design of the spaces around building is given the same level of 
consideration from the outset as the design of building themselves’. Trees are not 
only a landscape environmental benefit but, as the SPD outlines, a health benefit 
for people which enhances their environment. 
 

214. TDC’s Principal Tree Officer has reviewed the proposal and has the following 
comments: 
 

215. The application requires the removal of 83 individual trees, 12 tree groups (which 
inevitably contain a many more trees) 18 shrub groups and 9 sections of hedge. 
This is out of total of 625 arboricultural elements, which contain many individual 
specimens together with other groups and woodland areas, which themselves 
contain a large number of trees.  
 

216. He notes that all BS5837 category ‘A’ trees are to be retained. Tree removals include 
11 ‘B’ category, with the remaining trees to be removed being either the lower value 
‘C’ category, or the very low value ‘U’ category. However, as compensation for those 
trees being removed it is proposed to plant 102 trees, 11 specimen shrubs and 872 
m of native hedgerow. There are also many other biodiversity enhancements 
proposed which will be discussed within the ecology section of the report. 
 

217. Overall, it would appear that a considerable amount of effort has gone into designing 
a layout that retains as many high and moderate quality trees as is reasonably 
possible, and that the retained trees have been given due consideration in terms of 
their sustainable retention and protection during demolition and construction. 
Furthermore, the degree of compensatory planting and biodiversity enhancements 
is a positive measure.   
 

218. Finally, the ancient nearby woodland has also been provided with a buffer of 15m, 
which is sufficient in the context of this site. The large majority of the trees of 
landscape significance are to be retained.  
 

219. Officers are of the opinion that, in terms of the arboricultural impact of the 
development proposal, providing conditions are added to ensure the protection of 
the trees along with other measures, there would be no undue harm in this regard 
as the proposal would comply with Local Plan Part 2: Detailed Policies Policy DP7 
and Core Strategy Policy CSP18. 

 
Biodiversity 

 
220. Section 15 (paragraphs 174 - 188) of the NPPF 2021 speaks of the need to conserve 

and enhance the natural and local environment. Developments that conserve or 

Page 60



 

47 
 

enhance biodiversity should be supported. Development proposals are required to 
minimise impacts on and providing net gains for biodiversity. 
 

221. CS Policy CSP17 requires development proposals to protect biodiversity and 
provide for the maintenance, enhancement, restoration and, if possible, expansion 
of biodiversity, by aiming to restore or create suitable semi-natural habitats and 
ecological networks to sustain wildlife in accordance with the aims of the Surrey 
Biodiversity Action Plan. 
 

222. Local Plan Part 2: Detailed Policies Policy DP19 advises that planning permission 
for development directly or indirectly affecting protected or priority species will only 
be permitted where it can be demonstrated that the species involved will not be 
harmed or appropriate mitigation measures can be put in place. 
 

223. The current site contains open green space with mature trees and ancient woodland 
to the north and south of the development proposal.   
 

224. With regard to biodiversity and ecology impacts, Surrey Wildlife Trust (SWT) were 
consulted. Following their assessment of biodiversity gain and protected species.  
 

225. SWT advised that re-commencement conditions will be required so that details of 
the ancient woodland mitigation strategy, a badger walkover survey and mitigation 
strategy if required, a landscape and ecological management plan (LEMP), a 
construction environmental management plan (CEMP) and lighting details can all 
be approved prior to development commencing. SWT have also recommended 
other planning conditions relating to aspects of biodiversity that are included in the 
planning conditions set out in Appendix 1 to this report. 
 

226. Overall, this application is considered acceptable subject to the conditions outlined 
above and, for this reason is considered policy compliant in this regard.  

 
Renewable Energy and Energy Efficiency  

 
227. Policy CSP14 requires the reduction of carbon dioxide (CO2) emissions by means 

of on-site renewable energy technology. For schemes of more than ten dwellings a 
20% saving in CO2. Development over 5000m2 is expected to incorporate 
combined heat and power or similar technology. In addition, no-residential 
development should achieve a BREEAM ‘Very Good’ rating.  
 

228. The YE development is for modest refurbishment and a small amount of new build. 
For this reason, the Planning Statement sets out that it would not be either 
reasonable or proportionate to pursue the BREEAM rating. However, a range of 
measures will be implemented to ensure the development is as sustainable as 
possible.  
 

229. Similarly, these measures will also be carried out on the Audley development 
proposal, and these include the following: 

 

• All rooms in new extensions will be lit by natural daylight and glare will be 
controlled by roof overhangs and blinds 

• New extensions will be constructed using fabric first approach and high levels 
of fabric insulation to keep operational use energy to a minimum. 

• Existing buildings will be re-used whenever possible. 

• A central E bike facility will be provided. 

Page 61



 

48 
 

• Cycle storage facilities will be provided around the site with staff showers 
appropriately located. 

• Drainage will ensure that the post-development run-off with not exceed the pre-
development run-off. 

• External lighting will be timeclock controlled. 

• Water use will be minimised with efficient fixtures and fittings in all refurbishment 
and new build projects.  

• Resilient & optimised energy strategy including renewables generation on-site 
(e.g., PV panels), smart metering, district energy network for new build. 

• Buildings that ‘age well’. Materials that age and weather well. New 
accommodation that can be adapted and adjusted for future needs. 

• Sustainable transport initiatives 

• Air quality: measures to maximise local air quality and minimise pollution. 

 

230. In the event that the application is granted, a condition will be attached to ensure 
that the development proposal complies with the sustainability requirements as set 
out in policy CSP14 of the Tandridge District Core Strategy.  
 
Very Special Circumstances 

 

231. As discussed above, it is considered that the proposal would comprise inappropriate 
development within the Green Belt which would have a greater impact on openness 
than existing development on the site. It has also been found that the proposed 
development would have a harmful impact on the character and appearance of the 
site and surrounding area, albeit causing only moderate harm. In such 
circumstances, and in accordance with paragraph 147 of the NPPF 2021, 
inappropriate development is, by definition, considered harmful to the Green Belt 
and should not be approved except in very special circumstances.  
 

232. Paragraph 148 of the NPPF 2021 goes on to state that when considering any 
planning application, local planning authorities should ensure that substantial weight 
is given to any harm to the Green Belt. ‘Very Special Circumstances’ (VSC’s) to 
justify overriding Green Belt policy will not exist unless the potential harm to the 
Green Belt by reason of inappropriateness, and any other harm resulting from the 
proposal, is clearly outweighed by other considerations. 
 

233. The Planning Policy Statement (PPS) submitted with the planning application and 
prepared by QED sets out 11 points which make the Applicants’ case to 
demonstrate VSC’s. Overall, the PPS indicates that the following VSC’s, will 
collectively support the three strands (economic, social and environmental) of 
sustainable development set out in the NPPF. 
 

234. Officers have carefully reviewed the VSC’s put forward on the applicants’ behalf and 
set out their conclusions below. VSC’s suggested by the applicants and officer 
assessment: 
 
1. Securing the long-term future of YE; 

 
The future of Young Epilepsy is currently hanging in the balance. A lack of 
funding has resulted in many of the buildings falling into disrepair and 
maintenance has been reduced to essential needs only. In addition, many 
buildings are dated and some are no longer fit for purpose.  
 

Page 62



 

49 
 

The development proposal includes the one-off injection of £6.7 million to carry 
out essential renovations in order to bring the school/college up to the required 
standard and encourage future students to the site. This would secure the level 
of income required to ensure sustainability: Principally the provision of additional 
classrooms and other facilities within the proposed extensions to the college will 
provide an additional capacity for ten college students, delivering more much 
needed placements for young people along with an associated increase in 
income. 
 
The proposals would facilitate an affordable maintenance programme: The 
masterplan will reduce maintenance costs in the long term and support the 
generation of sufficient income to deliver a £8.8M maintenance programme 
between 2025-2028 which would address both the current backlog and planned 
maintenance required to bring all operational buildings up to Department of 
Education Condition Grade B: ‘Performing as intended but exhibiting minor 
deterioration’.  
 
Overheads would be significantly reduced, which is necessary both to meet 
maintenance liabilities and to be able to set value for money fees, to ensure that 
Young Epilepsy can continue to secure sufficient placements to generate 
income. Overheads would be reduced through: 
 

• The consolidation of operations into fewer buildings 

• Investment in priority maintenance 

• Demolishing buildings, which are derelict, beyond economic repair, have 
reached the end of their design life and have no viable use. These buildings 
carry costs, including insurance, Health & Safety, security and council tax-
costs. 

 
The development would ensure the space and condition of buildings meet 
quality standards: Not only does Young Epilepsy have a responsibility to ensure 
that their facilities meet the quality standards set by the Department of 
Education, which will give them the best chance of meeting their potential and 
assure their health and well-being, the quality of YE’s facilities is a key deciding 
factor for children, young people, their parents and commissioners. 
 
The negative impact of 40 buildings, which are derelict, beyond economic repair 
or beyond their design lifespan would be addressed: The visual impact of the 40 
empty buildings across the estate, has a negative impact for students, staff and 
visitors. In addition, the apparent neglect attracts trespass and vandalism, which 
carries a cost, as well as health and safety risks. 
 
Officers accept that ensuring the continuity of the work of Young Epilepsy and 
the very specialised care it provides for vulnerable children and young adults is 
a public benefit of these development proposals and carries substantial weight 
as a VSC when weighing up the planning balance of the development proposal. 

 
2. Socio-economic benefits accruing from the development: 
 

The economic benefits set out within the submitted PPS suggest 119 on-site 
jobs would be created annually during three years of construction with 202 net 
additional on-site jobs during the operation of the scheme. A total of 397 
equivalent full time on-site jobs would be secured on the YE estate.  
 

Page 63



 

50 
 

The construction of the scheme will create social value through training, new 
skills, local procurement arrangements and the reduction of unemployment. The 
operational stage of the proposed development is also estimated to deliver 
social value and environmental benefits, principally through education and 
healthcare services provided by Audley Group and YE and also the permanent 
employment opportunities created. 
 
Officers’ assessment is that as YE is one of the largest employers in the area of 
Lingfield, this Very Special Circumstance of maintaining the local employment 
YE provides would carry significant weight as a VSC when weighing up the 
planning balance of the development proposal. The additional employment to 
be provided by the Audley extra care development comes at the cost of 
additional built development in the Green Belt and is afforded only moderate 
weight. 

 
 
3. Re-use of previously developed land within the Green Belt; 
 

The refurbishment and extension projects are to be constructed on previously 
developed land, enhancing the sustainability of the overall development.  
 
However, the development as a whole is not one of the exceptions to Green Belt 
policy as set out in paragraph 149 of the NPPF 2021 and therefore would not 
qualify as a VSC in officers’ opinion. 

 
4. Improvements to the openness of the Green Belt and reduction of built footprint 

across the site;  
 

It is acknowledged that the eastern part of the Young Epilepsy site will benefit 
from the demolition of some of the derelict buildings and the improvement to the 
openness of the Green Belt. In addition, the consolidation of the Young Epilepsy 
buildings with updated buildings would be a benefit for the school. However, 
overall there would be an intensification of the use of the site. The siting, height, 
bulk and massing of the proposed new buildings would result in larger buildings 
than those being demolished, in a more prominent position in the Green Belt.  
 
The point has also been raised that new buildings for the school were granted 
planning permission in the 1990’s on the proviso that some of the existing 
buildings were demolished. However, a condition ensuring that the demolition 
took place was not added to the decision notice and, therefore, cannot be taken 
into consideration. The development was not implemented. 
 
Officers do not consider this is a VSC to be weighed in the planning balance. 

 

5. Contribution to the supply and delivery of housing in Tandridge District which 
can only demonstrate a 1.71 years housing land supply; 

 
 The 152 dwellings to be provided within the Audley part of the proposed 
development would potentially supply some benefit if local homeowners 
downsized to this development, thereby freeing up under-occupied family 
homes. The financial contribution of £500,000 that would be provided for off-site 
affordable housing would widen the supply of this type of housing with the 
District.  
 

Page 64



 

51 
 

The Council’s Interim Policy Statement for Housing Delivery (IPSHD) of 
September 2022 makes specific provision for housing development proposals 
that: 
 
“Constitute enabling development (for charitable development or heritage asset 
conservation purposes)”. 

 
In this context enabling development is defined in Appendix B of the IPSHD: 

 
“Enabling development means allowing development to take place that would 
not normally be granted permission because it is contrary to development plan 
(and possibly national planning) policy but which enables the delivery of a 
development which provides exceptional and significant public benefit.” 
 
These development proposals would come within the definition of enabling 
development and would therefore be policy compliant, albeit that the IPSHD is 
not part of the development plan but a policy adopted by the District Council and 
thereby only a material consideration in the determination of this application.  
 
Officers’ assessment is that this VSC would carry moderate weight when 
weighing up the planning balance of the development proposal. 

  

6. Contribution to meeting the critical need for specialist accommodation for older 
people nationally, and locally;  

 
The ‘Needs’ paper sets out that a monthly management fee would cover the 
ongoing costs of running and maintaining the main buildings and landscaped 
grounds and the expense of any major works required, as well as building 
insurance. The monthly management fee would also include the cost of the Care 
and Wellbeing Package. Due to the range of care services that Audley can 
provide, they maintain that they are able to commit to the residents, through their 
lease, that once they have moved in they have the right to live in their property 
for the rest of their lives whatever their care needs might be. The only caveat is 
that should their mental health deteriorate to the level where they become a 
danger to themselves or others, they may be asked/required to move to more 
suitable accommodation in a community able to deal with their mental condition 
and provide secure accommodation. 

 
The assessment package would require future residents to need at least two 
hours of assistance a week in order to be eligible to buy a unit.  

 
Finally, a payment of £195,681 would be provided in order to contribute to the 
extension at Lingfield Surgery to mitigate the impact the extra care development 
would have on the surgery. 
 
The provision of 152 extra care dwellings would make a significant contribution 
to meeting the identified need in Tandridge District for this type of dwelling which 
is not currently being met.   
 
Officers consider that this VSC would carry moderate weight when weighing up 
the planning balance of the development proposal. 

 
 
 

Page 65

https://www.lawinsider.com/dictionary/enabling-development


 

52 
 

7. A highly sustainable development incorporating multiple renewable energy 
technologies, and exceeding BREEAM Very Good standard; 

 
The following measures will be carried out on the development proposal and 
include the following: 
 

• All rooms in new extensions will be lit by natural daylight and glare will be 
controlled by roof overhangs and blinds 

• New extensions will be constructed using fabric first approach and high 
levels of fabric insulation to keep operational use energy to a minimum. 

• Existing buildings will be re-used whenever possible. 

• A central E bike facility will be provided. 

• Cycle storage facilities will be provided around the site with staff showers 
appropriately located. 

• Drainage will ensure that the post-development run-off with not exceed the 
pre-development run-off. 

• External lighting will be timeclock controlled. 

• Water use will be minimised with efficient fixtures and fittings in all 
refurbishment and new build projects.  

• Resilient & optimised energy strategy including renewables generation on-
site (e.g., PV panels), smart metering, district energy network for new build. 

• Buildings that ‘age well’. Materials that age and weather well. New 
accommodation that can be adapted and adjusted for future needs. 

• Sustainable transport initiatives 

• Air quality: measures to maximise local air quality and minimise pollution. 
 

However, it is the choice of the applicant to exceed current Building Regulation 
standards. 
 
Officers consider that this Very Special Circumstance would carry only limited 
weight when weighing up the planning balance of the development proposal. 

 
8. Refurbishment of Listed Buildings and an enhancement to their setting;  
 

Three Grade II listed buildings will be repaired and enhanced as part of this 
development. Their re-use will help their upkeep and provide a public benefit in 
terms of their conservation. It is acknowledged that some dwellings are being 
demolished which are considered to be a non-designated heritage asset. 
However, in the interests of the development proposals as a whole, officers 
consider that their demolition needs to be accepted.  
 
This Very Special Circumstance would carry significant weight when weighing 
up the planning balance of the development proposal due to the importance of 
conserving heritage assets and the public benefit from so doing. 

 
9. Enhancement of existing ecological habitats on the site including securing a net 

gain in biodiversity and a net gain of trees around the site. 
 

All developments are now expected to provide a net gain to biodiversity as part 
of mitigation for local biodiversity. The ecology report prepared by the Ecology 
Partnership sets out that the existing site makes a limited contribution to 
ecology. Where the presence of protected species has been identified (e.g., 
bats) suitable mitigation is recommended. Furthermore, the site provides a 
significant opportunity to enhance biodiversity to the east of the site particularly 

Page 66



 

53 
 

around where the YE buildings are to be demolished. Overall, the proposals will 
result in a 35 % increase in habitat units; and a 66% increase in hedgerow units 
in biodiversity.  
 
Other biodiversity enhancements relating to restoring Ancient Woodland to the 
north of the site are set out under 10 below but should be included here. 
 
Considered as a VSC, officers consider that net gain to biodiversity would carry  
moderate weight when weighing up the planning balance of the development 
proposal. 

 

 

10. Contribution to a reduction in pressure on local NHS and healthcare services 
 

Officers do not consider that the development proposal would contribute to a 
reduction in pressure on the NHS. Rather, there would be more pressure in the 
immediate locality as a more vulnerable part of the community who would be 
more likely to need medical attention would be situated in one densely populated 
area. Notwithstanding this, contributions by Audley of £195,982 towards 
mitigating the impact of their development on Lingfield Surgery would be 
secured via a Section 106 agreement. This would improve NHS services for the 
community as a whole. However, officers do not consider this is a VSC for 
allowing development in the Green Belt. 

 
11. Restoring a part of the Ancient Woodland to the north 
 

It is acknowledged that this is a benefit as part of the development proposal. 
This element benefits ecology which has already been assessed under 8 above. 
That VSC was given moderate weight and, as such, no weight will be given to it 
separately.  

 
Conclusions on VSC: 

 
235. In summary, officers conclude that the following VSC identified by the applicants in 

their PPS, or otherwise identified separately in this report, need to be given the 
weight attributed to them below in determining the planning balance for this planning 
application: 

 

• Securing the long-term future of YE – substantial weight 

• Socio-economic benefits accruing from the development – significant weight 

• Refurbishment of Listed Buildings and an enhancement to their setting – 
significant weight 

• Contribution to the supply and delivery of housing in Tandridge District – 
moderate weight 

• Contribution to meeting the critical need for specialist accommodation for 
older people nationally, and locally – moderate weight 

• Enhancement of existing ecological habitats on the site including securing a 
net gain in biodiversity and a net gain of trees around the site and restoration 
of Ancient Woodland – moderate weight 

• A highly sustainable development incorporating multiple renewable energy 
technologies, and exceeding BREEAM Very Good standard – limited weight 

 
 
 

Page 67



 

54 
 

Section 106 Agreement 
 

236. The applicants have in discussion with officers of the Council put forward Heads of 
Terms for a Section 106 agreement which, together with the VSC for overriding 
Green Belt policy and suggested planning conditions, are considered to acceptably 
address both planning policy considerations and issues such as sustainability and 
mitigation of impacts on local health services. The Heads of Terms which are set 
out below itemise all our agreed contribution sums and are put forward on the basis 
that there is no requirement for a Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) contribution: 

 

• Healthcare contribution - £195,892 (as requested by Surrey Heartlands 
NHS). 

• Audley enhanced minibus service to replicate the demand response service 
(as requested by Surrey Council) and agreed to run in perpetuity from first 
occupation.  

• Travel Plan monitoring fee of £12,000 (as requested by Surrey County 
Council). 

• A voluntary affordable housing contribution of £500,000 (as requested by 
Tandridge housing officers) and offered on the basis that there is no future 
review mechanism.  

• Legal and monitoring fees – Figure to be provided by Tandridge and agreed 
by the applicant. 

• Provision of car club space on first occupation.  

• To restrict occupation of a unit of accommodation other than by an owner 
over the age of 60 years old (at least one per unit) and assessed as requiring 
a care package, unless otherwise agreed. 

• To require at least one occupier of a unit of accommodation to take a care 
package (minimum 2 hours per week), to be defined within the agreement, 
provided by a care provider operating from the site 24 hours a day.  

• Employment and Skills – a reasonable endeavours clause. 

• Compliance with M4(2) – accessible and adaptable dwellings – this captures 
the essence of Lifetime Homes and is the category closest to what Audley’s 
residents need.  

• To provide no later than occupation of 20% of the Audley units to make 
available to owners (and members of the public, as relevant, on a managed 
basis), the following facilities: 
 

o Restaurant 
o Communal Lounge 
o Hobbies Room 
o Library 
o Audley Club 

 
Conclusions 
 

237. The planning application proposes development that is considered to represent 
inappropriate development in the Green Belt, thereby being harmful by definition. 
However, this needs to be weighed against the Very Special Circumstances (VSC) 
as set out in the previous section.  Collectively, these VSC’s are considered, 
exceptionally in this case, to outweigh this Green Belt harm. The most compelling 
of these relates to the financial contribution to Young Epilepsy, which will be 
sufficient to allow it to continue to function as a school/college, providing specialist 
care for those with autism and epilepsy. The other VSCs are fully noted and afforded 
weight as discussed above. These VSC, are considered sufficient to outweigh the 

Page 68



 

55 
 

harm that has been identified to the Green Belt if the application is granted planning 
permission.  

 
238. Accordingly, the VSC’s necessary to justify the development have been 

demonstrated and therefore a conflict with Policy DP10 of the development plan, 
and paragraph 148 of the NPPF 2021, would not occur. Further, given the existence 
of very special circumstances, and there being no overriding heritage objections, it 
follows that the application of the Framework’s Green Belt and heritage policies do 
not provide a clear reason for refusing planning permission. 
 

239. Other harms earlier identified as a result of the development being unacceptable in 
terms of its character and appearance and making insufficient provisions to mitigate 
the infrastructure effects of the development or to meet the affordable housing 
requirements of the District have been addressed in revisions to the application or 
will be addressed in the Section 106 agreement the applicants have agreed to enter 
into.  
 

240. With respect to the application for listed building consent, there are a number of 
benefits deriving from the development proposal. The Granary is currently empty 
and in need of repair. This proposal comprises a new use as a picnic barn with 
repairs to be carried out as part of the development. The barn will also undergo 
repairs but a new use has yet to be established. The farmhouse would be used as 
an office. The repairs and functions of the Grade II Listed buildings would provide 
them with a value as part of the overall function of the site. In addition, the loss of 
the unsympathetic workshop and the provision of the new landscaping around the 
heritage buildings would provide a more sensitive setting whilst retaining the use of 
the car park. The development proposals overall will secure the future of 
irreplaceable heritage assets which is a significant public benefit. 
 

241. The loss of 1 and 2 Farm Cottages is unfortunate from a heritage perspective, 
however, their removal in order to reduce the overall building mass on the site in the 
interests of complying with Green Belt policies is recognised. 
 

242. Overall, taking into consideration the potential impact of the development proposal 
on the setting of the listed buildings, officers consider that these improvements 
would outweigh the less than substantial harm identified as part of this application. 
For these reasons, officers consider that the application would be acceptable and 
would comply with local and national policies and that Listed Building Consent 
should be granted. 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 

 
i) PLANNING APPLICATION RECOMMENDATION: PERMIT subject to that 

applicants first entering into a Section 106 agreement in the terms set out 
above and subject to the conditions set out in Appendices 1 and 2 to this 
report. 

 
 
ii) LISTED BUILDING CONSENT RECOMMENDATION: GRANT subject to 

the conditions set out in Appendix 2 to this report. 
 
 
iii) THE CHIEF PLANNING OFFICER BE AUTHORISED TO AGREE ANY 

NECESSARY AMENDMENTS TO THE DRAFT CONDITIONS SET OUT IN 

Page 69



 

56 
 

APPENDIX 1 AND APPENDIX 2, AND THAT THE CHIEF PLANNING 
OFFICER AND HEAD OF LEGAL SERVICES BE AUTHORISED TO 
AGREE THE FINAL WORDING OF THE SECTION 106 AGREEMENT 
COVERING THE MATTERS SET OUT IN THE HEADS OF TERMS AT 
PARAGRAPH 234 OF THIS REPORT. 

 
 

Page 70



      APPENDIX 1 

PROPOSED PLANNING CONDITIONS 

      APPLICATION TA/2022/1161 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 71



1. 3 Year Time Limit 
 
The development hereby permitted shall start not later than the expiration of 3 years from 
the date of this permission. 
 
Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as 
amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 

2. Approved drawings and documents  
 
This decision refers to the following drawings and information:          

Design & Access Statement (DAS)  
Site Location Plan          
Dwg No: 19061 GFA ZZ ZZ DR A 10 001 A1 1:2000 P1 
Demolitions Plan              
Dwg No: 19061 GFA ZZ ZZ DR A 10 003 A0 1:1000 P1       
Site Phasing Plan              
Dwg No: 19061 GFA ZZ ZZ DR A 10 009 A3 NTS P1               
Proposed Site Plan           
Dwg No:  19061 GFA ZZ ZZ DR A 10 010 A0 1:1000 P3          
Site Elevations (1 of 2)     
Dwg No: 19061 GFA ZZ ZZ DR A 10 031 A1 1:200 P1              
Site Elevations (2 of 2)     
Dwg No: 19061 GFA ZZ ZZ DR A 10 032 A1 1:200 P1 
               
DRAWING GENERAL ARRANGEMENT - PROPOSED - BLOCK A 
Key Plans                           
Dwg No: 19061 GFA A 00 DR A 11 010 1 A1 1:200 P2  
Key Plans                           
Dwg No: 19061 GFA A 02 DR A 11 011 2 A1 1:200 P2               
Ground & First Floor Plan (1 of 3)   
Dwg No: 19061 GFA A 00 DR A 11 012 A1 1:100 P2                        
Ground & First Floor Plan (2 of 3)   
Dwg No: 19061 GFA A 00 DR A 11 013 A1 1:100 P2                        
Ground & First Floor Plan (3 of 3)   
Dwg No: 19061 GFA A 00 DR A 11 014 A1 1:100 P2                        
Second Floor & Roof Plan (1 of 3)  
Dwg No: 19061 GFA A 02 DR A 11 015 A1 1:100 P2              
Second Floor & Roof Plan (2 of 3) 
Dwg No: 19061 GFA A 02 DR A 11 016 A1 1:100 P2             
Second Floor & Roof Plan (3 of 3) 
Dwg No: 19061 GFA A 02 DR A 11 017 A1 1:100 P2                                           
Elevation Key Elevations  
Dwg No: 19061 GFA A ZZ DR A 12 010 A1 1:200 P2             
Elevations 1                        
Dwg No: 19061 GFA A ZZ DR A 12 011 A1 1:100 P2           
Elevations 2                         
Dwg No: 19061 GFA A ZZ DR A 12 012 A1 1:100 P2            
Elevations 3                         
Dwg No: 19061 GFA A ZZ DR A 12 013 A1 1:100 P2  
Sections                                
Dwg No: 19061 GFA A ZZ DR A 13 010 A1 1:200 P2            
 
 

Page 72



DRAWING GENERAL ARRANGEMENT - PROPOSED - BLOCK B 
Ground/First Floor Plans  
Dwg No: 19061 GFA B 00 DR A 11 020 A1 1:100 P2     
Second Floor/Roof Plans   
Dwg No: 19061 GFA B 02 DR A 11 022 A1 1:100 P2                 
Elevations                             
Dwg No: 19061 GFA B ZZ DR A 12 024 A1 1:100 P2   
Elevations (New Dwg)        
Dwg No: 19061 GFA B ZZ DR A 12 025 A1 1:100 P1          
Sections                                
Dwg No:  19061 GFA B ZZ DR A 13 025 A1 1:100 P2     

 
DRAWING GENERAL ARRANGEMENT - PROPOSED - BLOCK C 
Plans & Elevations             
Dwg No: 19061 GFA C1 ZZ DR A 11 031 A1 1:100 P1                
Plans & Elevations             
Dwg No: 19061 GFA C2 ZZ DR A 11 032 A1 1:100 P1                
Plans & Elevations             
Dwg No: 19061 GFA C3 ZZ DR A 11 033 A1 1:100 P1                
Plans & Elevations             
Dwg No: 19061 GFA C4 ZZ DR A 11 034 A1 1:100 P1   
Plans & Elevations             
Dwg No: 19061 GFA C5 ZZ DR A 11 035 A1 1:100 P1                  
Plans & Elevations             
Dwg No: 19061 GFA C6 ZZ DR A 11 036 A1 1:100 P1         
Plans & Elevations             
Dwg No: 19061 GFA C7 ZZ DR A 11 037 A1 1:100 P1          
 
DRAWING GENERAL ARRANGEMENT - PROPOSED - BLOCK D 
Ground/First Floor Plans  
Dwg No: 19061 GFA D 00 DR A 11 040 A1 1:100 P2  
Second Floor/Roof Plans  
Dwg No: 19061 GFA D 02 DR A 11 042 A1 1:100 P2             
Elevations                           
Dwg No; 19061 GFA D ZZ DR A 12 044 A1 1:100  
Elevations (New Dwg)      
Dwg No: 19061 GFA D ZZ DR A 12 045 A1 1:100 P1    

 
DRAWING GENERAL ARRANGEMENT - PROPOSED - BLOCK E 
Ground/First Floor Plans  
Dwg No: 19061 GFA E 00 DR A 11 050 A1 1:100 P2              
Second Floor/Roof Plans  
Dwg No: 19061 GFA E 02 DR A 11 052 A1 1:100 P2              
Elevations                          
Dwg No: 19061 GFA E ZZ DR A 12 054 A1 1:100 P2       
Elevations (New Dwg)      
Dwg No: 19061 GFA E ZZ DR A 12 055 A1 1:100 P1   
 
DRAWING GENERAL ARRANGEMENT - PROPOSED - BLOCK F 
Ground/First Floor Plans  
Dwg No: 19061 GFA F 00 DR A 11 060 A1 1:100 P2     
Second Floor/Roof Plans  
Dwg No: 19061 GFA F 02 DR A 11 062 A1 1:100 P2         
Elevations                            
Dwg No: 19061 GFA F ZZ DR A 12 064 A1 1:100 P2              

Page 73



Elevations (New Dwg)      
Dwg No: 19061 GFA F ZZ DR A 12 065 A1 1:100 P1       

 
DRAWING GENERAL ARRANGEMENT - PROPOSED - BLOCK M 
Ground Floor Plan            
Dwg No: 19061 GFA M 00 DR A 11 070 A1 1:100 P1               
First Floor Plan                  
Dwg No: 19061 GFA M 01 DR A 11 071 A1 1:100 P1             
Second Floor Plan             
Dwg No: 19061 GFA M 02 DR A 11 072 A1 1:100  
Roof Plan                            
Dwg No: 19061 GFA M 03 DR A 11 073 A1 1:100 P1            
Elevations                           
Dwg No: 19061 GFA M ZZ DR A 12 074 A1 1:100 P1             
Elevations                           
Dwg No: 19061 GFA M ZZ DR A 12 075 A1 1:100  
Sections                              
Dwg No: 19061 GFA M ZZ DR A 13 076 A1 1:100 P1                

   
DRAWING GENERAL ARRANGEMENT - PROPOSED - MISC 
Sub Station/Switch Rm   
Dwg No: 19061 GFA Q 00 DR A 11 090 A3 1:100 P1              
Refuse/Recycling Store   
Dwg No: 19061 GFA Q 00 DR A 11 091 A3 1:100 P1              
Grounds Maintenance Store         

  Dwg No: 19061 GFA Q 00 DR A 11 092 A3 1:100 P1             
Bike & Buggy Store           
Dwg No: 19061 GFA Q 00 DR A 11 093 A3 1:100 P1    
Plant Enclosure                  
Dwg No: 19061 GFA Q 00 DR A 11 094 A3 1:100 P1    
Site Context Plan               
Dwg No: LN-LP-101 1 : 10,000 A1    
Topography Plan               
Dwg No: LN-LP-102 1 : 10,000 A1                                    
Landscape Character Plan            
Dwg No: LN-LP-103 1 : 10,000 A1                                                             
Site Appraisal Plan            
Dwg No: LN-LP-104 1 : 5,000 A3                  
Visual Appraisal Plan        
Dwg No: LN-LP-105 1 : 5,000  
LBMS Plan                           
Dwg No: A3 LN-LP-106  

 
Illustrative Landscape Masterplan  
Dwg No: A3 LN-LP-107 
Site Appraisal Photographs           
Dwg No: LN-LP-SAP N/A A1                                                             
Site Context Photographs             
Dwg No: LN-LP-SCP N/A A3                                                           
Landscape Proposals       
Dwg No: RG-L-IN-01 N/A N/A                                                        
Landscape                          
Dwg No: GA PM-01-2 RG-LD-01A N/A N/A A                          
Landscape                          
Dwg No: GA PM-01-3 RG-LD-01A N/A N/A A                                         

Page 74



Landscape                          
Dwg No: GA PM-01-4 RG-LD-01A N/A N/A A                                        
Landscape                          
Dwg No: GA PM-01-5 RG-LD-01A N/A N/A A                   
Landscape                         

 Dwg No: GA PM-01-6 RG-LD-01A N/A N/A A                         
Landscape                          
Dwg No: GA PM-01-7 RG-LD-01A N/A N/A  
Landscape                        
Dwg No: GA PM-01-8 RG-LD-01A N/A N/A                      
Landscape GA Heritage Square  
Dwg No: RG-L-200 RG-L-200 N/A A2 C                        
Landscape GA College Courtyard  
Dwg No: RG-L-201 RG-L-200 N/A A1 A                                
Illustrative Masterplan-Wider Site  
Dwg No: A0 RG-L-300 N/A A0  
Landscape                          
Dwg No: GA PM-01-0 RG-L-01 N/A N/A                                  
Landscape                          
Dwg No: GA PM-01-1 RG-L-01 N/A N/A                                                 
Maple Conversion to LRC and Education Offices 
Dwg No: 1969_071      
Boatshed Conversion 
Dwg No: 1969_072        
Proposed Site Plan with Car Park Locations Highlighted 
Dwg No: 1969_056A       
Proposed Site Plan – New Neville Centre Visitor’s Car Park 
Dwg No: 1969_057A       
Proposed Site Plan – New College East Car Park  
Dwg No: 1969_061A       
Proposed Site Plan - Central Car Park 
Dwg No: 1969_062       

 
LISTED BUILDING DRAWINGS] 
Proposed GF plans Farmhouse, barn link and barn 
Dwg No: 1969_140A 
 
 
Proposed FF plans Farmhouse, barn link and barn 
Dwg No: 1969_141A    
Proposed Roof plans Farmhouse, barn link and barn 
Dwg No: 1969_142A      
Proposed elevations Farmhouse, barn link and barn 
Dwg No: 1969_143      
Proposed Sections Farmhouse, barn link and barn 
Dwg No: 1969_144      
Proposed Granary Plans and Elevations 
Dwg No: 1969_145      
Proposed Window Schedule 
Dwg No: 1969_146      
Proposed window and door details 
Dwg No: 1969_147      
Proposed Bifold door details 
Dwg No: 1969_148      
Proposed Granary Staircase details 

Page 75



Dwg No: 1969_149      
Vkhp Structural plan  
Dwg No: 1969_3.04_220527 - SK01 Plan Rev B   
Vkhp Structural section  
Dwg No: 1969_3.04_220527 - SK02 Section A-A rev B  
Prop Plans College Extensions 
Dwg No: 1969_100      
Prop Roof plans_College Extensions 
Dwg No: 1969_101      
Prop Elevations_College Extensions 
Dwg No: 1969_102      
Prop Elevations_College Extensions 
Dwg No; 1969_103      
Prop Plans College Extensions 
Dwg No: 1969_104  

 
DOCUMENTS 
Design and Access Statement jointly prepared by Gaunt Francis Architects and Lytle 
Associates; Dated: 8 July 2022 
Securing the Future for Young Epilepsy at St Piers Estate report, prepared by YE; 
Dated: July 2022 
Economic, Social Value & Environmental Benefits Statement prepared by Savills; 
Dated: July 2022 
Extra Care Needs Assessment prepared by Barton Willmore;  Dated July 2022 

  Statement of Community Engagement prepared by Camargue; 
Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment and Green Belt Assessment prepared by 
Barton Willmore; 

Landscape and Biodiversity Management Strategy   
  Financial Viability Assessment prepared by Savills; 
  Heritage Impact Assessment prepared by RPS;  

Statement to support heritage works prepared by RPS  
  Archaeological Desk-Based Assessment prepared by Savills;         

Arb report prepared by Tim Moya Associates;  
Biodiversity Survey/Report and Biodiversity Checklist prepared by the Ecology 
Partnership; 
Flood Risk Assessment and Sustainable Drainage Statement prepared by Tier; 
Foul Sewerage and Utilities Assessment prepared by Tier;  
Transport Assessment and Travel Plan prepared by Caneparo Associates; 

           External Lighting Report prepared by SVM;  
  Noise Impact Assessment prepared by Red Twin Ltd 

Sustainability Statement prepared by Leed Associates and SVM;        
 Planning statement              
 Use class and operator statement by Audley and Mayfield     

Drainage Strategy by Tier Consult  
 

The development shall be carried out in accordance with these approved drawings. There 
shall be no variations from these approved drawings. 

 
Reason: To ensure that the scheme proceeds as set out in the planning application and 
therefore remains in accordance with the Development Plan. 

  

 

 

Page 76



PRE-COMMENCEMENT CONDITIONS 

3. Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) 
 
Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, the following details 
relating to a Construction Environmental Management Plan shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
a) Map showing the location of all the ecological features 
b) Risk assessment of the potentially damaging construction activities 
c) Practical measures to avoid and reduce impacts during construction 
d) Location and timing of works to avoid harm to biodiversity features 
e) Responsible persons and lines of communication 
f) Use of protected fences, exclusion barriers and warning signs. 

 
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the details provided and any 
protection measures shall not be removed until the construction works have been 
completed and tools, vehicles etc have been removed from the site. 

 
Reason: in the interests of biodiversity and in accordance with Policy CSP17 of the 
Tandridge Local Core Strategy 2008 and Policy DP19 of the Tandridge Local Plan: Part 2 
– Detailed Policies 2014 and policies within the NPPF. 

 
4. Landscape and ecological management plan (LEMP) 

 
Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, details relating to 
proposed impact avoidance, mitigation and enhancement measures shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The details shall include, but not 
be limited to the following: 
 
a) Description and evaluation of features to be managed. 
b) Ecological trends and constraints on site that might influence management 
c) Aims and objectives of management 
d) Appropriate management options for achieving aims and objectives 
e) Prescriptions for management actions, together with a plan of management 

compartments  
f) Preparation of a work schedule (including an annual work plan capable of being rolled 

forward over a five year period 
g) Details of the body or organisation responsible for implementation of the plan 
h) Ongoing monitoring and remedial measures  
i) Legal and funding mechanisms by which the long term implementation of the plan will 

be secured by the applicant with the management bodies responsible for its delivery. 
j) Monitoring strategy, including details of how contingencies and/or remedial action will 

be identified, agreed and implemented so that the development still delivers the fully 
functioning biodiversity objectives of the originally approved scheme. 

 
Reason: in the interests of biodiversity and in accordance with Policy CSP17 of the 
Tandridge Local Core Strategy 2008 and Policy DP19 of the Tandridge Local Plan: Part 2 
– Detailed Policies 2014 and policies within the NPPF. 

 
5. Bat Survey 

 
Prior to the commencement of the development within each phase as shown on drawing 
10009 (Site Phasing Plan) hereby approved (including demolition) details of the results of 
the additional bat surveys shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 

Page 77



Planning Authority. The aforementioned phasing plan identifies the ‘Audley Group Phase’ 
in blue and the ‘Young Epilepsy Phase’ in purple. If bats are present in the buildings to be 
demolished, suitable mitigation methods shall be submitted to and approved for each 
phase in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To ensure the protection of bat species in accordance with Policy CSP17 of the 
Tandridge Local Core Strategy 2008 and Policy DP19 of the Tandridge Local Plan: Part 2 
– Detailed Policies 2014. 
 
It would be advisable that there is a requirement for the methodology and results of the 
update bat presence/likely absence/roost characterisation surveys to be provided to the 
LPA in line with the recommendations within the Ecology Partnership Technical Note (7th 
December 2022), along with an update bat mitigation strategy. The surveys must be 
undertaken by a suitably qualified ecologist(s). Following the completion of these ‘top-up’ 
bat surveys, the Applicant should submit an update technical report and mitigation strategy 
to the LPA. 
 

6. Construction Transport Management Plan 

Prior to the commencement of the development (including demolition) within each phase 
as shown on drawing 10009 (Site Phasing Plan) hereby approved, a Construction 
Transport Management Plan for the relevant phase of the development shall be submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, including the following details: 
 
a) parking for vehicles of site personnel, operatives and visitors 
b) loading and unloading of plant and materials 
c) storage of plant and materials 
d) programme of works (including measures for traffic management) 
e) vehicle routing 
f) measures to prevent the deposit of materials on the highway 
g) no HGV movements to or from the site shall take place between the hours of 8.30 and 

9.15 am and 3.15 and 4.00 pm nor shall the contractor permit any HGVs associated 
with the development at the site to be laid up, waiting, in St.Piers Lane during these 
times 

h) on-site turning for construction vehicles has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. Only the approved details shall be implemented during 
the construction within each phase of the development. 

 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and to prevent inconvenience to other highway 
users in accordance with DP5 of the Tandridge Local Plan: Part 2 Detailed Policies 2014 
and Section 9 'Promoting Sustainable Transport' in the National Planning Policy 
Framework 2021. 

 
7. Land Contamination 

 
Prior to the commencement of the development (including demolition) (Audley Group 
Phase) hereby approved, a suitably qualified person shall carry out a Phase 1 desk study 
site walkover for all the relevant areas to be developed in this permission including a 
suitable risk assessment considering likely pathways between future sensitive receptors 
and historic ground conditions. Where necessary the Phase 1 desk study shall include a 
scheme of investigation and mitigation for each relevant part of the development which 
shall be submitted to and approved by the local planning authority. Prior to commencement 
of above groundwork of each relevant part of on the development (Audley Group Phase) 
a scheme for decontamination and verification shall then be agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority and the scheme as approved, including provision of suitable soft 

Page 78



landscaping where necessary, shall be implemented before any part of the development 
(Audley Group Phase) hereby permitted is occupied. 
 
Reason: To ensure satisfactory amelioration of contaminated land, in accordance with 
Policy DP22 of the Tandridge Local Plan: Part 2 Detailed Policies 2014. 
 

8. Levels 
 
Prior to the commencement of the development (excluding demolition) within each phase 
as shown on drawing 10009 (Site Phasing Plan) hereby approved, details of the levels of 
accesses and finished floor levels of the buildings hereby approved for the relevant phase 
of the development have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The development within each phase shall be carried out in accordance with 
these approved details. 
 
Reason: The application contains insufficient information for the prior consideration of 
these details and to ensure a satisfactory form of development in accordance with Policy 
CSP18 of the Tandridge Local Core Strategy 2008 and Policy DP7 of the Tandridge Local 
Plan: Part 2 Detailed Policies 2014. 
 

9. Badger Setts  
 
Prior to the commencement of any construction, demolition and excavation works within 
each phase as shown on drawing 10009 (Site Phasing Plan), a survey of the site by an 
appropriately qualified and experienced ecologist should be undertaken within the 
proposed development boundary and a 30m buffer, to search for any new badger setts 
and confirm that any setts present remain inactive. If any badger activity is detected within 
each phase a suitable course of action shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To safeguard the ecological interest of the site in accordance with Policy CSP17 
of the Tandridge Local Core Strategy 2008 and Policy DP19 of the Tandridge Local Plan: 
Part 2 – Detailed Policies 2014. 
 

10. Tree Protection Scheme 
 
Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved (including demolition 
and all preparatory work), within each phase as shown on drawing 10009 (Site Phasing 
Plan) a scheme for the protection of the retained trees, within the relevant phase of the 
development, in accordance with BS 5837:2012, including a tree protection plan(s) (TPP) 
and a detailed arboricultural method statement (AMS) shall be submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Specific issues to be dealt with in the TPP and AMS: 
a) Location and installation of services/ utilities/ drainage. 
b) Methods of demolition within the root protection area ( RPA as defined in BS 5837: 

2012) of the retained trees. 
c) Details of construction within the RPA or that may impact on the retained trees. 
d) a full specification for the installation of boundary treatment works. 
e) a full specification for the construction of any roads, parking areas and driveways, 

including details of the no-dig specification and extent of the areas of the roads, parking 
areas and driveways to be constructed using a no-dig specification. Details shall 
include relevant sections through them. 

f) A specification for protective fencing to safeguard trees during both demolition and 
construction phases and a plan indicating the alignment of the protective fencing. 

Page 79



g) a specification for scaffolding and ground protection within tree protection zones. 
h) Tree protection during construction indicated on a TPP and construction and 

construction activities clearly identified as prohibited in this area. 
i) details of site access, temporary parking, on site welfare facilities, loading, unloading 

and storage of equipment, materials, fuels and waste as well concrete mixing and use 
of fires 

j) Methodology and detailed assessment of root pruning 
k) A schedule of arboricultural supervision and monitoring of activities within any RPA 

which is identified within the AMS. Details of such visits to be recorded and submitted 
to the Local Planning Authority within one month of completion of development. 

l) Reporting of inspection and supervision 
m) Methods to improve the rooting environment for retained and proposed trees and 

landscaping 
n) Veteran and ancient tree, and ancient woodland protection and management 

Reason: To prevent damage to trees in the interest of the visual amenities of the area in 
accordance with Policy CSP18 of the Tandridge District Core Strategy 2008 and Policy 
DP7 of the Tandridge Local Plan: Part 2 Detailed Policies 2014. 

11. Programme of Archaeological Work  
 
Prior to the commencement of the development the development (excluding demolition) 
within each phase as shown on drawing 10009 (Site Phasing Plan) hereby approved the 
applicant, or their agents or successors in title, shall secure the implementation of a 
programme of archaeological work, to be conducted for the relevant phase of the 
development in accordance with a written scheme of investigation which has been 
submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority.  
 
The developer shall afford access at all reasonable times to an archaeologist nominated 
by the Local Planning Authority and shall allow him or her to observe the excavations 
within each phase and record any items of interest or finds.  
 
Reason: In the interests of the retention of heritage assets in compliance with DP20 of the 
Tandridge Local Plan Part 2: Detailed Policies 2014. 
 

12. Community Safety – Secured by Design 
 
Prior to the commencement of the development within each phase as shown on drawing 
10009 (Site Phasing Plan) hereby permitted, details of the measures to be incorporated 
into the development (Audley Group Phase) demonstrating how the principles and 
practices of the ‘Secured by Design’ (SBD) scheme and local crime prevention measures 
have been included within the design and build shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority (LPA). Once approved in writing by the LPA in 
consultation with the Metropolitan Police Designing Out Crime Officers, the development 
within each phase shall be carried out in accordance with the agreed details and 
maintained thereafter. 
 
Prior to first occupation or public use within each phase, a SBD certificate or letter from 
Surrey Police – Designing Out Crime Office showing full compliance to the agreed detail 
will be required. 
 
Reason: In the interest of creating safer and sustainable communities and to secure crime 
prevention and safety of the area in accordance with policy DP7 of the Tandridge Local 
Plan: Part 2 – Detailed Policies 2014. 
 

Page 80



13. Material Samples 
 
Notwithstanding the information provided, prior to the commencement of the development 
(excluding demolition) within each phase hereby approved as shown on drawing 10009 
(Site Phasing Plan), written details and samples of the materials to be used in the 
construction of the external surfaces of the relevant phase of the development hereby 
permitted shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority and 
the buildings shall be constructed using the approved materials. These samples shall 
include the materials from the buildings to be demolished.  
 
Reason: To enable the Local Planning Authority to exercise control over the type and 
colour of materials, so as to enhance the development and to ensure that the new works 
are appropriate to the character of the area in accordance with Policy CSP18 of the 
Tandridge Local Core Strategy 2008 and Policy DP7 of the Tandridge Local Plan Part 2: 
Detailed Policies 2014. 
 

14. Hard and soft landscaping  
 
Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved full details of both hard 
and soft landscape works within each phase as shown on drawing 10009 (Site Phasing 
Plan), shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and 
these works shall be carried out as approved for the relevant phase of the development. 
These details shall include: 

• proposed finished levels or contours 
• means of enclosure 
• car parking layouts 
• other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas 
• hard surfacing materials 
• minor artefacts and structures (eg. furniture, play equipment, refuse or other 

storage units, signs, lighting etc.).   
• tree and hedgerow planting as compensation for those elements being removed. 

 
Details of soft landscape works shall include all proposed and retained trees, hedges and 
shrubs; ground preparation, planting specifications and ongoing maintenance, together 
with details of areas to be grass seeded or turfed.  Planting schedules for the relevant 
phase of the development shall include details of species, plant sizes and proposed 
numbers/densities.  
 
All new planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of landscaping shall 
be carried out in the first planting and seeding season following the completion or 
occupation of any part of the development (whichever is the sooner) or otherwise in 
accordance with a programme to be agreed.  Any trees or plants (including those retained 
as part of the development) which within a period of 5 years from the completion of the 
development die, are removed, or, in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority, become 
seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others 
of similar size and species, unless the Local Planning Authority gives written consent to 
any variation. The hard landscape works shall be carried out prior to the occupation of the 
development.  

Reason: To maintain and enhance the visual amenities of the development in accordance 
with Policy CSP18 of the Tandridge District Core Strategy 2008 and Policies DP7 and 
DP10 of the Tandridge Local Plan: Part 2 – Detailed Policies 2014.  

 
 

Page 81



15. Sustainable Drainage (Audley Group Phase) 

Prior to the commencement of the development (excluding demolition) (Audley Group 
Phase) hereby approved, details of the design of a surface water drainage scheme have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority. The design must 
satisfy the SuDS Hierarchy and be compliant with the national Non-Statutory Technical 
Standards for SuDS, NPPF and Ministerial Statement on SuDS. The required drainage 
details shall include: 

a) The results of infiltration testing completed in accordance with BRE Digest: 365 and 
confirmation of groundwater levels. 

b) Evidence that the proposed final solution will effectively manage the 1 in 30 (+35% 
allowance for climate change) & 1 in 100 (+45% allowance for climate change) storm 
events and 10% allowance for urban creep, during all stages of the development 
(Audley Group Phase). If infiltration is deemed unfeasible, associated discharge rates 
and storage volumes shall be provided using a maximum discharge rate equivalent to 
the pre-development Greenfield run-off 

c) Detailed drainage design drawings and calculations to include: a finalised drainage 
layout detailing the location of drainage elements, pipe diameters, levels, and long and 
cross  sections of each element including details of any flow restrictions and 
maintenance/risk reducing features (silt traps, inspection chambers etc.). 

d) A plan showing exceedance flows (i.e. during rainfall greater than design events or 
during blockage) and how property on and off site will be protected from increased 
flood risk. 

e) Details of drainage management responsibilities and maintenance regimes for the 
drainage system. 

f) Details of how the drainage system will be protected during construction and how 
runoff (including any pollutants) from the development site will be managed before the 
drainage system is operational. 

Reason: To ensure the design meets the national Non-Statutory Technical Standards for 
SuDS and the final drainage design does not increase flood risk on or off site in accordance 
with DP21 of the Tandridge Local Plan Part 2: Detailed policies 2014-2029. 

16. Sustainable Drainage (Young Epilepsy Phase) 
Prior to the commencement of the development (Young Epilepsy Phase) hereby approved, 
details of the design of a surface water drainage scheme have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the planning authority. The design must satisfy the SuDS Hierarchy 
and be compliant with the national Non-Statutory Technical Standards for SuDS, NPPF 
and Ministerial Statement on SuDS. The required drainage details shall include: 

a) The results of infiltration testing completed in accordance with BRE Digest: 365 and 
confirmation of groundwater levels. 

b) Evidence that the proposed final solution will effectively manage the 1 in 30 (+35% 
allowance for climate change) & 1 in 100 (+45% allowance for climate change) storm 
events and 10% allowance for urban creep, during all stages of the development. If 
infiltration is deemed unfeasible, associated discharge rates and storage volumes shall 
be provided using a maximum discharge rate equivalent to the pre-development 
Greenfield run-off 

c) Detailed drainage design drawings and calculations to include: a finalised drainage 
layout detailing the location of drainage elements, pipe diameters, levels, and long and 

Page 82



cross  sections of each element including details of any flow restrictions and 
maintenance/risk reducing features (silt traps, inspection chambers etc.). 

d) A plan showing exceedance flows (i.e. during rainfall greater than design events or 
during blockage) and how property on and off site will be protected from increased 
flood risk. 

e) Details of drainage management responsibilities and maintenance regimes for the 
drainage system. 

f) Details of how the drainage system will be protected during construction and how 
runoff (including any pollutants) from the development site will be managed before the 
drainage system is operational. 

Reason: To ensure the design meets the national Non-Statutory Technical Standards for 
SuDS and the final drainage design does not increase flood risk on or off site in accordance 
with DP21 of the Tandridge Local Plan Part 2: Detailed policies 2014-2029. 

SLAB LEVEL CONDITIONS 

17. Detailed Design  
 
a) Prior to the commencement of facade works (Audley Group Phase), detailed drawings 

plan/section/elevation at 1:20 of the following shall be submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority for approval in writing: 
• Typical window (reveal, header, sill); 
• Communal entrances; 
• Typical Balcony/balustrade; and 
• Parapets. 

 
b)  The (Audley Group Phase) development shall only be implemented in accordance with 

the details approved under part a) above. 
Reason: To ensure a satisfactory standard of external appearance in accordance with 
Policy CSP18 of the Tandridge Local Core Strategy 2008 and Policy DP7 of the Tandridge 
Local Plan Part 2: Detailed Policies 2014. 

18. Renewables 
 
The development (Audley Group Phase) hereby approved shall not commence above slab 
level until details demonstrating how the development (Audley Group Phase) would satisfy 
the 20% reduction of carbon emissions through renewable resources have been submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The renewable energy 
provision for the Audley Group phase shall thereafter be implemented and retained in 
accordance with the approved details. 
 
Reason: To ensure on-site renewable energy provision to enable the development to 
actively contribute to the reduction of carbon dioxide emissions in accordance with Policy 
CSP14 of the Tandridge District Core Strategy 2008. 
 

PRIOR TO OCCUPATION CONDITIONS 

19. Verification Report – Audley phase 

Prior to the first occupation of the development, a verification report carried out by a 
qualified drainage engineer must be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. This must demonstrate that the surface water drainage system has been 
constructed as per the agreed scheme (or detail any minor variations), provide the details 

Page 83



of any management company and state the national grid reference of any key drainage 
elements (surface water attenuation devices/areas, flow restriction devices and outfalls), 
and confirm any defects have been rectified. 

Reason: To ensure the Drainage System is designed to the National Non-Statutory 
Technical Standards for SuDS. 

20. Demolition of Buildings 

Prior to the occupation of the development within each phase as shown on drawing 10009 
(Site Phasing Plan), hereby approved, the buildings shown on drawing 10003 – Demolition 
Plan within each phase of the development to be demolished as part of that phase of the 
development hereby approved shall be removed in accordance with a programme of work 
for the restoration of that part of the site, including timescales, which shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development within each 
phase shall be carried out in accordance with these approved details and landscaped in 
accordance with the approved Landscape and Ecological Management Plan prior to the 
occupation of any part of the proposed development. 

Reason: To ensure satisfactory completion of the development in accordance with Policy 
CSP18 of the Tandridge Local Core Strategy 2008 and Policies DP7, DP10 and DP13 of 
the Tandridge Local Plan Part 2: Detailed Policies 2014. 

21. Parking Layout 

Prior to the occupation of the development hereby approved within each phase as shown 
on drawing 10009 (Site Phasing Plan), parking spaces shall be laid out and completed in 
the approved materials within the relevant phase of the site in accordance with the 
approved plans for vehicles to be parked and for vehicles to turn so that they may enter 
and leave the site in forward gear. 

Thereafter the parking/turning areas within each phase of the development shall be 
retained and maintained for their designated purposes. 

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and to prevent inconvenience to other highway 
users in accordance with DP5 of the Tandridge Local Plan: Part 2 Detailed Policies 2014 
and Section 9 ‘Promoting Sustainable Transport’ in the National Planning Policy 
Framework 2021. 

22. Cycle and Mobility Scooter Parking Details – Audley 
 
Prior to the occupation of the development within each phase as shown on drawing 10009 
(Site Phasing Plan), hereby approved facilities for the secure, covered parking of bicycles 
and mobility scooters (Audley Group Phase) and the provision of a charging point by said 
facilities shall be provided within the relevant phase of the development site in accordance 
with a scheme to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority 
and thereafter the said approved facilities within each phase shall be provided, retained 
and maintained to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and to prevent inconvenience to other highway 
users in accordance with DP5 of the Tandridge Local Plan: Part 2 Detailed Policies 2014 
and Section 9 'Promoting Sustainable Transport' in the National Planning Policy 
Framework 2021. 
 

23. Electric Vehicle Parking Points – Audley only 
 
Prior to the occupation of the development (Audley Group Phase) hereby approved each 
of the proposed parking spaces (142) for the development (Audley Group Phase) are 

Page 84



provided with a fast-charge Electric Vehicle charging point (current minimum requirements 
- 7 kw Mode 3 with Type 2 connector - 230v AC 32 Amp single phase dedicated supply) 
in accordance with a scheme to be submitted and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority and thereafter retained and maintained for the Audley Group Phase to 
the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and to prevent inconvenience to other highway 
users in accordance with DP5 of the Tandridge Local Plan: Part 2 Detailed Policies 2014 
and Section 9 'Promoting Sustainable Transport' in the National Planning Policy 
Framework 2021. 
 

24. Modified vehicular accesses and visibility splays 
 
Prior to the occupation of the development hereby approved each sub-phase of the care 
community development as shown on drawing 10009 (Site Phasing Plan) the relevant 
proposed modified vehicular accesses to St.Piers Lane shall be constructed and provided 
with visibility zones in accordance with drawing TR006 Rev B and thereafter the visibility 
zones for each phase shall be kept permanently clear of any obstruction over 0.6 m in 
height. 
 
Reason: The development should not prejudice highway safety nor cause inconvenience 
to other highway users and in recognition of Section 9 'Promoting Sustainable Transport' 
in the National Planning Policy Framework 2021.Policy and in compliance with the NPPF 
(2021), policies CSP1, CSP12 of the Core Strategy DPDS (2008) and policies DP5 and 
DP7 of the TLP Part 2: Detailed Policies (2014). 
 

25. Parking and turning areas 
 
Prior to the occupation of the development (Audley Group Phase) hereby approved space 
shall be laid out within the site in accordance with the approved plans for vehicles to be 
parked including disabled spaces and for vehicles to turn as shown on approved drawing 
19061-GFA-ZZ-ZZ-DR-A-10010 so that they may enter and leave the site in forward gear. 
Thereafter the parking/turning areas for each sub-phase shall be retained and maintained 
for their designated purposes. 
 
Reason: The development should not prejudice highway safety nor cause inconvenience 
to other highway users and in recognition of Section 9 'Promoting Sustainable Transport' 
in the National Planning Policy Framework 2021.Policy and in compliance with the NPPF 
(2021), policies CSP1, CSP12 of the Core Strategy DPDS (2008) and policies DP5 and 
DP7 of the TLP Part 2: Detailed Policies (2014). 
 

26. Bicycle and scooter storage 
 
Prior to the occupation of the development hereby approved as shown on drawing 10009 
each sub-phase (Site Phasing Plan) of the development shall be provided with the 
following facilities within the development site: 
Audley Sub-Phase (A - North)  
 
The secure, covered parking for a minimum of 10 bicycles and 10 mobility scooters and 
the provision of a charging point by said facilities. This will include: 10 cycle/scooter 
spaces, 8 staff spaces and 8 visitor spaces 
Audley Sub-Phase (B - South)  
 
The secure, covered parking for a minimum of 10 bicycles / mobility scooter spaces and 
the provision of a charging point by said facilities in accordance with a scheme to be 

Page 85



submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and thereafter the 
said approved facilities shall be provided, retained and maintained for each care 
community development sub-phase to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: The development should not prejudice highway safety nor cause inconvenience 
to other highway users and in recognition of Section 9 'Promoting Sustainable Transport' 
in the National Planning Policy Framework 2021.Policy and in compliance with the NPPF 
(2021), policies CSP1, CSP12 of the Core Strategy DPDS (2008) and policies DP5 and 
DP7 of the TLP Part 2: Detailed Policies (2014). 
 

27. Electric vehicle charging points 
 
Prior to the occupation of the development hereby approved each sub-phase of the care 
community development as shown on drawing 10009 (Site Phasing Plan) shall not be 
occupied unless and until each of the proposed parking spaces for the relevant phase in 
accordance with approved plan  19061-GFA-ZZ-ZZ-DR-A-10010 are provided with a fast-
charge Electric Vehicle charging point (current minimum requirements - 7 kw Mode 3 with 
Type 2 connector - 230v AC 32 Amp single phase dedicated supply) in accordance with a 
scheme to be submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and 
thereafter retained and maintained for each sub-phase to the satisfaction of the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: The development should not prejudice highway safety nor cause inconvenience 
to other highway users and in recognition of Section 9 'Promoting Sustainable Transport' 
in the National Planning Policy Framework 2021.Policy and in compliance with the NPPF 
(2021), policies CSP1, CSP12 of the Core Strategy DPDS (2008) and policies DP5 and 
DP7 of the TLP Part 2: Detailed Policies (2014). 
 

28. Travel Plan YE 
 
Prior to the occupation of the development hereby approved details of a revised 
Framework Workplace Travel Plan (dated December 2022) for the Young Epilepsy Group 
phase shall be provided in accordance with details that shall be submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Travel plan shall be implemented prior to 
the occupation of the development hereby approved and shall be maintained and 
developed thereafter to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: The development should not prejudice highway safety nor cause inconvenience 
to other highway users and in recognition of Section 9 'Promoting Sustainable Transport' 
in the National Planning Policy Framework 2021.Policy and in compliance with the NPPF 
(2021), policies CSP1, CSP12 of the Core Strategy DPDS (2008) and policies DP5 and 
DP7 of the TLP Part 2: Detailed Policies (2014).  
 

29. Travel plan Audley 
 
Prior to the occupation of the development hereby approved a revised Care Community 
Travel Plan for the Audley Group phase shall be provided in accordance with details to 
include the baseline data, targets and details of measures implemented from an existing 
Audley care community which has a travel plan (e,g. Audley Coopers) and details of car 
club uptake from an Audley care community, that shall be submitted to and agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority and thereafter implemented prior to the first 
occupation of the Audley Group Phase of the development, and the Travel Plan shall 
thereafter be maintained and developed to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. 
 

Page 86



Reason: The development should not prejudice highway safety nor cause inconvenience 
to other highway users and in recognition of Section 9 'Promoting Sustainable Transport' 
in the National Planning Policy Framework 2021.Policy and in compliance with the NPPF 
(2021), policies CSP1, CSP12 of the Core Strategy DPDS (2008) and policies DP5 and 
DP7 of the TLP Part 2: Detailed Policies (2014). 
 

30. External Lighting 
 
Notwithstanding any details submitted, any external lighting installed in each phase as 
shown on drawing 10009 (Site Phasing Plan) (whether permanent or temporary) shall be 
in accordance with details that shall have previously been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. These details shall include, inter alia, measures to 
shield and direct light from the light sources and will accord with the recommendations of 
the Bat Conservation Trusts' document entitled 'Bats and Lighting in the UK - Bats and 
The Built Environment Series' and to safeguard the ecological interest of the site. This will 
prevent light pollution and illuminance contour plots covering sensitive neighbouring 
receptors and the sensitive landscape location as well as protecting local ecology. The 
development of the relevant phase shall thereafter be carried out in accordance with the 
subsequently approved details and maintained as such thereafter.   
 
Reason: To control light pollution and to preserve the character of the countryside and 
Green Belt in accordance with Policies CSP17 and CSP18 of the Tandridge Local Core 
Strategy 2008 and policies DP7, DP10 DP13 and DP19 of the Tandridge Local Plan: Part 
2 – Detailed Policies 2014. 
 

31. Storage of materials 
 
No goods, materials or waste matter shall be stored nor shall any machinery or plant be 
installed on the open parts of the site except as may be agreed in writing with the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the development does not detract from the visual amenities of the 
area and harm the openness of the Green Belt, in accordance with Policy CSP18 of the 
Tandridge Local Core Strategy 2008 and Policy DP7, DP10 and DP13 of the Tandridge 
Local Plan: Part 2 – Detailed Policies 2014. 
 

32. Landscape Compliance 
 
The development shall only be implemented in accordance with the details approved 
under the Landscape and Biodiversity Management Strategy. 
Reason: To safeguard the ecological interest of the site in accordance with Policy CSP17 
of the Tandridge Local Core Strategy 2008 and Policy DP19 of the Tandridge Local Plan: 
Part 2 – Detailed Policies 2014. 
 

33. Operating Hours of Shop 
 
The shop unit (Young Epilepsy Phase), falling within Use Class E shall not be open for 
customers outside the following times: 
 
08:00 to 22:00 Monday to Sunday and 10:00 to 18:00 on Bank Holidays. 
 
Reason: To safeguard the amenities of nearby residents in accordance with Policy CSP18 
of the Tandridge Local Core Strategy 2008 and Policy DP7 of the Tandridge Local Plan: 
Part 2 – Detailed Policies 2014. 
 

Page 87



34. Rainwater Pipes, vents, flues and grills 
 
No rainwater pipes, vents, flues or grills other than those shown on the approved plans 
shall be installed without the consent of the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To ensure a satisfactory standard of external appearance of the development. 
 

35. Works to listed buildings to be completed prior to occupation of care facility  
 
Prior to the occupation of the care home, all repairs to the Listed buildings on the Young 
epilepsy site shall be completed and the Grade II listed buildings shall be retained as such 
in perpetuity. 
 
Reason: In the interests of the preservation of heritage assets in accordance with Policy 
DP20 of the Tandridge Local Plan: Part 2 Detailed Policies 2014 and policies within the 
NPPF. 
 

36. Removal of PD rights 
 
Notwithstanding the provisions of The Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) 
(Amendment) (England) Regulations 1987 (or any other order revoking and re-enacting 
that Order with or without modification) the shop on the Young Epilepsy site shall be 
retained as such with no permitted change within Class E in perpetuity. 
 
Reason: To control further development of the site in the interests of sustainability and 
to preserve the openness of the Green Belt in accordance with Policy CSP18 of the 
Tandridge Local Core Strategy 2008 and Policies DP10 and DP13 of the Tandridge Local 
Plan: Part 2 – Detailed Policies 2014. 

Page 88



APPENDIX 2 

LISTED BUILDING CONSENT 

CONDITIONS 

      APPLICATION TA/2022/1022   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 89



 

1. Statutory Time Limit - Listed Building Consent 

The development hereby permitted shall be commenced before the expiration of 
THREE YEARS from the date of this permission. 

Reason: To comply with the requirements of Section 18 of the Planning (Listed 
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 (as amended). 

2. Approved plans 

This decision refers to the following drawings and information:     
Proposed GF plans Farmhouse, barn link and barn 
Drg No: 1969_140A         Dated: 06.07.2022 
Proposed FF plans Farmhouse, barn link and barn 
Dwg No: 1969_141A       Dated: 06.07.2022 
Proposed Roof plans Farmhouse, barn link and barn 
Dwg No: 1969_142A       Dated: 06.07.2022 
Proposed elevations Farmhouse, barn link and barn 
Dwg No: 1969_143      Dated: 06.07.2022 
Proposed Sections Farmhouse, barn link and barn 
Dwg No: 1969_144      Dated: 06.07.2022 
Proposed Granary Plans and Elevations 
Dwg No: 1969_145      Dated: 06.07.2022 
Proposed Window Schedule 
Dwg No: 1969_146      Dated: 06.07.2022 
Proposed window and door details 
Dwg No: 1969_147      Dated: 06.07.2022 
Proposed Bifold door details 
Dwg No: 1969_148      Dated: 06.07.2022 
Proposed Granary Staircase details 
Dwg No: 1969_149      Dated: 06.07.2022 
Vkhp Structural plan  
Dwg No: 1969_3.04_220527 - SK01 Plan Rev B  Dated: 06.07.2022 
Vkhp Structural section  
Dwg No: 1969_3.04_220527 - SK02 Section A-A rev B Dated: 06.07.2022 
Prop Plans College Extensions 
Dwg No: 1969_100      Dated: 06.07.2022 
Prop Roof plans_College Extensions 
Dwg No: 1969_101      Dated: 06.07.2022 
Prop Elevations_College Extensions 
Dwg No: 1969_102      Dated: 06.07.2022 
Prop Elevations_College Extensions 
Dwg No; 1969_103      Dated: 06.07.2022 
Prop Plans College Extensions 
Dwg No: 1969_104      Dated 06.07.2022 

 Heritage Impact Assessment prepared by RPS  Dated: July 2022 

 

Reason: To ensure that the development is undertaken in accordance with the 
approved drawing(s) and document(s) to ensure that the finished appearance of the 
development will enhance the character and visual amenities of the area and to 
satisfactorily protect the residential amenities of nearby occupiers. 

3. Material samples 

Page 90



 
Prior to the commencement of the development (Young Epilepsy Phase) hereby 
approved samples [or details] of the materials to be used including brickwork, roofing 
materials, hanging tiles, window details, shall be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. The works shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details. 
 
Reason: To enable the Local Planning Authority to exercise control over the type and 
colour of materials, so as to preserve the special interest of the listed building in 
accordance with Policy DP20 of the Tandridge Local Plan: Part 2 Detailed Policies 
2014. 
 

4. Alterations to External Surfaces  
 
No new plumbing, pipes, soilstacks, flues, vents or ductwork shall be fixed on the 
external faces of the building unless shown on the drawings hereby approved. No new 
grilles, security alarms, lighting, cameras or other appurtenances shall be fixed on the 
external faces of the building unless shown.  
 
Reason: In order to safeguard the special architectural or historic interest of the 
buildings. 
 

5. Historic Buildings – Written Records 
 
Prior to the commencement of the development (Young Epilepsy Phase) hereby 
approved, a written and photographic record of the School Buildings, Administrative 
Block Buildings, Cory, The Chapel, Garden and Tinling Cottages and 1 and 2 Farm 
Cottages to Level 2 of ‘Understanding Historic Buildings’ by Historic England (2016) 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
 
Reason: To accord with paragraph 205 of the National Planning Policy Framework to 
ensure that a record is made of the heritage assets before they are demolished in 
accordance with Policy DP20 of the Tandridge Local Plan: Part 2 Detailed Policies 
2014. 
 

6. Listed Building Repair Works 
 
Prior to the commencement of any repairs to the listed building, details of the repairs 
work to the timber framing on the granary shall be agreed in writing with the Historic 
Buildings Officer. 
 
Reason: To prevent unnecessary harm to the historic fabric of the listed building in 
accordance with Policy DP20 of the Tandridge Local Plan: Part 2 Detailed Policies 
2014. 

 

Page 91



This page is intentionally left blank



© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 OS 100018265

Young Epilepsy St Piers Lane Lingfield RH7 6PW 1:4,000
 TA/2022/1161

P
age 93



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes from the meeting held on 18th April 2023
	5 Applications for consideration by committee
	5.1 2022/1161 - Young Epilepsy, St Piers Lane, Lingfield, Surrey, RH7 6PW
	2022/1161 - Appendix 1 - Proposed Planning Conditions
	2022/1022 - Appendix 2 - Listed Building Consent Conditions
	2022/1161 - Committee Plan


